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Standard and special
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Carbide cutoff, grooving
and threading tool
systems, superhard
inserts, indexable insert
drills and milling tools

Mold bases and mold
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Plastic injection mold
builders, electronics,
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Net Sales Net Sales
00 T Y S, 350 00 ¢ 1189
01 N VS 369 01 157
02 S S 317 02 C 151
03 S D S /.02 03 ¢ 153
04 361 04 ¢ 161
Group Income (Loss) Group Income
00 1 A 249 00 ¢ 1 35.0
01 27.0 01 ¢ 1 18.9
02 EENEREEAT 1.4 02« ] 18.0
03 I 14.8 03 ¢ ] 14.9*
04 . s . 23.2)* 04 1 15.3*

*{ncludes restructuring charges of 5.4 in 2004.

*includes restructuring charges of

.9in 2003 and 1.2 in 2004,



Corporate Profile

B ,,w@@@ﬁ@d@@@@@ Group

Lines of Business

Vehicular audible and
visual warning devices,
outdoor warning
systems

Market Segments

Industrial audible and
visual warning devices
and communication
systems, hazardous
area lighting

Parking revenue
and access control
systems

Air and mechanical
sweepers for roadways,
parking areas, industrial
facilities and airport
applications

Sewer and catch basin

cleaners, industrial vacuum

loaders, glycol recovery

vehicles, hydroexcavation

vehicles, high pressure
waterblasting systems

Front, side &nd rear
refuse truck bodies

Municipalities,
government agencies,

Industry, oil and gas,
marine, mining and

Airports, municipalities,
institutions, parking

Municipalities,
contractors, airports,

Municipalities,
contractors, airports,

Municipalities, solid
waste caollection

military, utilities, institutions operators, contractors, industry industry contractors
automotive and truck roadway authorities

Representative Brands

Federal Signal, Federal Signal, Federal APD Elgin Guzzler Leach
TargetTech, VAMA, Victor, Pauluhn, Ravo Jetstream

Stinger Spike, NRL, Atkinson Vactor

Federal Warning Dynamics, Federal

Systems Warning Systems

Primary Manufacturing Locations

Anaheim, CA Pearland, TX Novi, Ml Elgin, IL Birmingham, AL Oshkosh, Wi
Danvillg, KY University Park, 1L Sao Paulo, Brazi Alkmaar, Netherlands Houston, TX Medicine Hat, Alber
University Park, IL Newcastle, England Streator, IL

Barcelona, Spain

Johannesburg,
South Africa

{in miltions of dollars)
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Financial Highlights

For the years ended December 31, 2004 2003
{in millions except per share amounts)
Operations
Net sales $ 1,139.0 $ 1,150.7
Operating income (loss) $ (.5) $ 81.7
Income {loss) from continuing operations 3 (12.7) $ 35.1
Per share data:
Income (foss) from continuing operations 3 (.26) $ 73
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of taxes $ .08 $ 05
Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax 3 4 $ 0.1)
Net income (loss} - diluted @ $ (.05) $ 78
Cash dividends paid $ .40 $ .80
Operating margin 0.0% 5.4%
Return on average common shareholders' equity (.8)% 9.1%
Cash flow from operations $ 525 $ 70.3
Capital expenditures $ 20.5 $ 16.8
Average commaon shares outstanding 482 48.0
Employees 6,134 6,454
Financial Position at Year-End
Shares outstanding 48.1 47.9
Primary working capital ** to sales 24.1% 22.7%
Debt-to-capitalization ratio @ 37% 40%
Shareholders’ equity $ 4127 $ 4225
Backlog $ 4316 $ 3466

“amounts may not add due 10 rounding
@ manufacturing operations only

@ defined as accounts receivable plus inventory less accounts payable and customer deposits

Net Sales
(in millions of dotlars)

L | 1,002
. 1 15
] 1,139

Income (Loss) Per Share
{continuing operations)

T — .95
I 73
(.26)

Cash Flow From Operations
(in millions of dollars)

02 R ————— 1021
03 A — 703
04 IR 525



Message from the Chairman

James C. Janning

2004 was & difficult year for Federal Signal Corporation. We faced an environment filled with many challenges.
While we saw a broad range of accomplishments, our financial results were impacted by further deterioration in
two of our underperforming vehicle businesses. Our entire team addressed these challenges with enthusiasm
and dedication. | thank my fellow directors for their guidance and commitment and commend management

for the progress made in steering our company toward the right direction. While we are not yet achieving the
financial results we must, the integrity and commitment of our employees make me very proud to be part of this
organization. There are certainly more challenges ahead, but | have great confidence in our leaders at Federal

Signal Corporation.

Over the past year, | have had the pleasure of working with Bob Welding. He is an excellent leader, and a great
fit for this organization. His hard work and determination have led to many strategic decisions that will enhance
long-term shareholder value. In addition to focusing on the company's operating performance, Bob has spent

a great deal of time evaluating the company's portfolio of businesses and implementing strategies that will take

us far in determining the future success of Federal Signal.

We were disappointed with Walden O’Dell’'s decision to leave the board early in 2005. We will miss his wisdom
and guidance but understand his decision given the demands on his time. | thank him for his service on the board
and for the many contributions he made.

| 'am also pleased to announce that we continued to strengthen our corporate governance. Adhering to the highest
standards of corporate governance has always been a priority for Federal Signal, but this year we placed an even
greater emphasis upon transparency and accountability. We separated the chairman and chief executive officer roles
at the end of 2003, and we restructured our board’s committees for greater independence and definition.

Additionally, the company successfully formalized and documented its control processes to meet the stringent
requirements of Sarbanes Oxley Section 404. Although this comprehensive process was time consuming and costly,

it increases our confidence in the quality of the company’s internal controls.

We have much to be excited about for 2005. We appreciate your continued interest and support of Federal
Signal Corporation.

SEI

James C. Janning
Chairman




To Our Shareholders, Customers
and Employees

2004 in Review - A transformation begins December marked
the end of my first year at Federal Signal and | am pleased to
issue this report. While much change occurred during the year
as we worked hard to streamline the company and position
ourselves for future profitable growth, lingering operaticnal issues
in our Fire Rescue Group and our Refuse business, along with
dramatic commodity cost increases, camouflaged an impressive
performance by our other operating units.

After spending much of my early time assessing our
portfolio of businesses, we announced a restructuring plan in
June. This, the first stage in our transformation, is what we have
called the “Shrink-to-Grow"” phase. It entailed some scaling back
of operations as we exited several unprofitable businesses,
divested non-core businesses, and removed fixed costs through
plant consolidations.

In shrinking our business we have created @ much stronger
foundation. We have taken an overly complicated footprint of
some 52 plants in 39 different locations to a more manageable
42 plants in 33 locations. We have reduced our workforce by
14%, although revenue declined by only 8% from these actions.
And most importantly, we are now able to focus our attention
on core businesses where we have sustainable competitive
advantages. However, our work is not done here — we will
continue to review our businesses and manufacturing footprint
going forward, in light of global market and competitive changes,
and perform strategic pruning as needed to ensure we remain
on track for healthy growth,

During the second half of the vear, | devoted much of my
time to our two most troubled businesses — the Fire Rescue
Group and Refuse business — because the initiatives underway
were not producing results fast enough.

Among the important changes we made in the Fire Rescue
Group this year was the appointment of several key leaders.

I have great confidence in Marc Gustafson’s abilities and leader-
ship gualities to ensure this business gets turned around.

Robert B. Welding

We were able to make progress in our efforts to stabilize produc-
tion and improve our cost systems — two areas of particular
focus. We still have much to do in both of these areas, however,
I am encouraged that we gained some traction as the year drew
to a close. | am confident that we should only improve from this
point forward,

In our Refuse business, we also made a number of changes
during 2004. We changed several key leadership positions and
began the process of consolidating our manufacturing plants
to reduce both fixed and variable costs, and we started work to
rationalize our product offering to reduce complexity.

The bulk of our restructuring attention was focused on Fire
Rescue and Refuse because our other businesses were and
continue to be fundamentally strong. Environmental Products
Group operations, outside of Refuse, all improved their margins
during the year, benefiting from strong orders in all three major
markets: US Industrial, US Municipal, and non-US. Safety
Products Group revenue and margin improved with the market
recovery and increased attention given to core product lines.
Margins also improved in most of the businesses in our Tool
Group as markets recovered (with the exception of Europe) and
greater focus was brought to operations improvement. Company-
wide, we were pleased with incoming orders, which were up
10% in 2004, and with non-US orders, which were up 17%.

As a result of our work during 2004, we ended the year a
leaner, more focused company. We can now turn our attention
to energizing initiatives for profitable growth.

Looking forward to 2005 As we entered 2005, our backlog
was strong — an increase of 25% from the end of 2003. The US
economy continues to expand, municipal budgets continue to
improve, and we have our pricing actions in place. We look to
2005 as a year of revenue growth from a smaller base, margin
recovery in Fire Rescue and Refuse, and additional margin

improvement in our other businesses.



In 2005 we will spend considerable time developing the
long-term vision and strategy for Federal Signal. We have
gstablished a goal of growing our sales in the high single digits
over the long term. To be able to achieve and sustain this goal,
we need to focus on what we are best at, and increase invest-
ment in new product development in those areas. As we
have said previously, we intend to grow the business roughly
two-thirds organically and one-third through acguisitions. New
product introductions, improving relationships with dealers,
and geographic expansion will contribute to the organic compo-
nent, while strategic acquisitions that build on existing core
competency areas will provide the remainder.

We are targeting longer term operating margins of 10% as
we reduce sourcing costs, continue with our lean enterprise
implementation and reduce manufacturing overhead and SG&A

costs as a percent of revenue. There is no guestion that we have

the strength in our brands and product portfolio to reach this
margin objective when combined with a sensible manufacturing
footprint and aggressive cost improvement initiatives.

2005 marks the launch of our Economic Value (EV) measure-
ment system, something | am passionate about and in which
| have personally invested a great deal of time. Incentive
compensation for the company’'s key managers and me will-be
100% linked to our success at improving EV. We designed our
program with targets established for the next three-year period
to ensure we are making decisions for the long-term health of
our business. We are alsc using EV in conjunction with a five-
year planning horizon to make sure we are developing plans that
will result in steady improvement in shareholder value over
the long term.

This year has not been easy and | am certainly not happy
with our financial results. | believe 2004 will prove to have been
a pivctal year in a significant transformation of the company,
and | am confident the decisions we have made during the year
will benefit Federal Signal in 2005 and in years to come.

I ' would like to thank all of our employees for their contribu-
tions to our progress throughout the year. As | visited our
installations around the world, { became very impressed with
the pride our people have in the company and their work, their
dedication to satisfy our customers, and their innate desire to
succeed. With this, | am greatly encouraged as we begin a new
year committed to deliver on our stated goals.

Sfratidac,

Robert D. Welding
President and Chief Executive Officer




In 2004 we strengthened our commitment to develop the next generation

of leaders for Federal Signal. We increased the depth of our talent in Human
Resources by creating two new positions, corporate vice president of human
resources, and corporate director of talent management. Working with local
management teams, these new positions will assess the current state of our
leadership, and identify and develop the key leaders of our future. Additional
investment in our people is integral to support our business strategy and

drive growth in a rapidly changing environment.

Federal Signal is committed to creating an environment that supports
learning so we are prepared to meet the challenges of the future as well as
achieve short-term performance objectives. To achieve this goal, we have
introduced human resources processes and practices that attract, retain,
and develop talent throughout our organization. The objective is to help our
employees realize their potential, and develop new skills and abilities to take
us into the future. Since talent is not a static asset, we will continue in our

efforts to get the "right” people in the "right” positions at the "right” time.

This year, many of our employees stepped up to meet the challenges of

our changing business environment. We applaud their efforts and encourage
them to capitalize from these experiences. Looking forward to 2005, we
believe our employees are stronger and more prepared to address the

evolving needs of the business.

Engineering and marketing employees from different
business groups work together on product strategy.
This cross-functional, cross-business work supports
the development of our future leaders.

Human Resource members meet to discuss
the future business needs of our company and the
implications these needs have on selecting, devel-
oping and retaining key talent for the future.



Operational Improvement

During 2004, we focused on improving productivity in our operations
through restructuring, lean enterprise and strategic purchasing initiatives.
Inventory turnover increased for each operating group, and rose from

4.8 to 5.2 turns compiany-wide.

Sales Per Employee Inventory Turns

{in thousands of dollars) (year-end)
02 I 154 02
03 I 168 03

04 181 04

The Pelican sweeper production line at Elgin
Sweeper Company employs lean manufacturing
principles for increased efficiency and throughput.

46
48
5.2




E-ONE's worldwide dealer network provides customers
with unmatched service, parts and training. Greenwood Fire
Apparatus, located in North Attleboro, Massachusetts, has
been an E-ONE dealer since May 1979.

At our VAMA production facility in Barcelona, Spain, lean
manufacturing techniques reduced working capital and
increased inventory turnover.

A new JD Edwards operating system has improved
workflow and global communications in the Tool Group.

As part of our overall operations strategy we have taken aggressive actions this year, as we
restructured and divested businesses in order to improve long-term operational performance.

Our lean enterprise and strategic purchasing programs also gained traction in 2004,
Focused efforts on cash flow and inventory management improved working capital perform-
ance in many divisions.

Consclidating our Production Locations We believe that in the past, our operating structure
has been excessively complex for a company our size. With restructuring and divestiture
activities completed in 2004, we eliminated 10 manufacturing facilities. This reduces our
fixed costs as we move forward as a leaner, more focused organization.

Environmental Products redesigned refuse truck body manufacturing processes to
improve workflow and increase asset utilization. We sold our Kelowna, British Columbia
facility and are in the process of combining production from our Oshkosh, Wisconsin
facility into our Medicine Hat, Alberta location.

Fire Rescue condensed its operations from six to four as we divested Plastisol Holdings,
B.V. and consolidated production of stainless steel trucks from Preble, New York into our
Ocala, Florida location. In addition, we were able to eliminate one of our production facilities
in Ocala through more efficient use of space. These changes should lower cperating costs
and allow for greater operational synergies. We also recruited a new Fire Rescue Group
president and several functional vice presidents to strengthen the leadership team.

Tool Group transferred manufacturing of die component tools from France to Portugal,
which is expected to reduce costs more than 30%. We sold the can tooling portion of the
die component sector.

Lean Enterprise We streamlined production lines and cleared space in our facilities to
make room for new products and operations. Lean manufacturing initiatives reduced costs,
inventories and lead times while delivery performance improved.

In Safety Products, sales per employee improved 11% for the group with all operating
units posting significant improvement. Fifty thousand square feet of manufacturing space
has been freed up to be sold to generate funds and reduce the investment base.

The Environmental Products Group achieved productivity gains in sales per employee with
improvements exceeding 15% in most businesses. Jetstream also reduced order to shipment
lead time on trailer units by 50%, providing dramatically improved customer response.

Improving workplace safety is an important by-product of our lean manufacturing focus.
During 2004, Vactor, Jetstream, Wittke and Federal APD celebrated the achievement of
working for at least one year without a lost-time injury.

Strategic Purchasing We experienced rising prices throughout 2004 for raw materials and
component parts as industrial growth began to rebound and worldwide commodity market
prices increased. We raised our prices to reflect the higher costs, but with a considerable
delay in recovery. Increases are likely to continue in select supply markets, and Strategic
Purchasing is mitigating this adverse trend with long-term strategic supplier alliance agree-
ments, volume leveraging, and aggressive cost reduction programs.
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International Growth

The F100 Rescue Ladder Platform fire truck meets
firefighters' needs in congested city environments.

It provides maneuverability through tight city streets
located in 11 countries outside the United States. During 2004, sales outside with its compact design and accessibility to towering

buildings with its sophisticated ladder system.
of the United States were $354 million, or 31% of the total. The Bronto serial device Is made at our facility in

Tampere, Finland.

We have a strong international presence with 21 manufacturing facilities

Non-US Sales Non-US Sales By Geagraphic Area
(in millions of dollars) (% of Non-US Sales)

02

03
04 |

Asia/Pacific M%
Mid East/Africa 17%
Europe 49%
Mexico/Latin America 7%
Canada 16%




Bayton Progress initiated operations at a new manufacturing
facility in Alcobaca, Portugal to serve European tooling
customers.

Asia/Pacific region sales grew significantly for industrial
vacuum and sewer cleaning vehicles.

In Trinidad, Federal Signal's Emergency Products Division
executed an order to equip 107 police cars and 20 police
motorcycles with Mini-Vector lightbars, Mini-Jet lightbars,
as well as sirens and speakers. :

As a global enterprise, we understand that success in international markets depends in
part upon our sensitivity to the unique customers and market conditions around the world.
During 2004, we expanded our reach into international markets with high growth potential,
and we have seen strong customer demand for our environmental, fire rescue, safety,

and tooling products.

Environmenta! Products Non-US sales grew 10% to $82 million, or 23% of total
group sales.

In Europe, Environmental Products entered into new distribution agreements which
strengthened its presence. Elgin Sweeper began to distribute truck-mounted vacuum
sweepers in the United Kingdom, the second largest market behind the United States in
this on-road segment.

In the Middle East, we delivered a fleet of Vactor units in support of rebuilding activities
in Irag and grew our market share for waterblasting units.

Fire Rescue Non-US sales contributed 37% of the group’s sales in 2004, Bronto Skylift,
headquartered in Finland, out paced the group, mainly a result of high demand for its rescue
ladder platforms by fire stations and its telescopic platform rentals by electrical utility
companies. Bronto Skylift also continues to gain market share in the Eurcpean aerial fire
rescue vehicle market competing with traditional ladder trucks.

To meet urgent military needs in Irag, we delivered thirteen heavy rescue vehicles and
eighteen tankers ahead of schedule.

Safety Products This group is well-positioned to grow in economies around the world with
products broadly suited to municipal and industrial applications, and with responsive global
production operations. International sales comprise 38% of the total sales for the group and
rose 11% in 2004,

At VAMA, our manufacturer of emergency warning and police equipment in Barcelona,
Spain, sales were up 9% for the year.

Safety Products particularly strengthened its position in Mexican markets with robust
sales in vehicular warning equipment and parking systems. Other areas of strong international
growth were hazardous area mining products.

Tool About 28% of 2004 tooling sales were in non-US markets. As part of our long-term plan
to globalize our manufacturing footprint we established a die component tooling plant in
Portugal in 2003. During 2004, we continued to ramp up production in this unit, transferring
production of European standard metric products from the United States. In Japan, our die
component subsidiary posted record sales and profits in 2004; Canadian die component sales
increased 22% from 2003.

In Europe, the metalcutting sector of the group initiated & distribution agreement to form
Manchester Tools of Europe. We established a similar arrangement in China.

In China, we also began construction of a new manufacturing facility to better serve fast-
growing Asian markets. By expanding our operations into Asia, we will be more responsive

and better aligned with customers in the region.
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Innovation

We continue to expand our investment in research and devel-
opment to bring new and enhanced products to our customers.

Innovation is a critical component of our businesses.

Research and Development
Expenditures (in millions of dollars)

02— 256
03 IR 30
04 I 276

The E-ONE Maobile Command and Communication
Center, designed to meet homeland security demands
and requirements, serves as the nerve center of
operations. The vehicle is equipped with advanced
electronics, communications and surveillance equipment
in a conference center environment.

Research and Development
Expenditures (% of total)

Tool 5%
EPG - 23%
FRG 41%
SPG 31%




The Guzzler NX industrial vacuum truck has advanced
filtration and loading capabilities, a quieter blower system,
and better fuel economy. US orders for vacuum trucks
increased 17% in 2004.

Federal Signal's Federal Warning Systems launched its
new SCADA municipal water plant monitoring and control
system in 2004 and anticipates strong growth in future
years. A schematic of a customer’s system appears on
the computer screen pictured above.

While our niche products already hold leading positions in their markets, we continually
strive to improve existing products and remain dedicated to new product development.
We are committed to listening to our diverse international customers and delivering guality
products to help them succeed. This year, we continued to spend a great deal of time with
customers and dealers, as they are our best resource for understanding how we can
develop products and technologies for cost-effective solutions.

Safety Products Federal APD has advanced the use of information technology with next-
generation parking and revenue control products; we were awarded a $47 million order

for a large-scale airport parking system for the Port Authority of New York and New Jersey.
In Brazil, Federal APD launched a new feature-rich yet value-priced product line for the
South American parking market.

Emergency Products continued to expand LED (light emitting diode} technology within
its emergency vehicular equipment product line, giving customers more effective and flexible
lighting capabilities. For example, the European emergency vehicular equipment division
introduced a new LED lighting package for motorcycles.

Electrical Products launched a new LED status indicator as part of its industrial signaling
product line for the semiconductor manufacturing equipment sector.

At Federal Warning Systems, a new SCADA system has been introduced to control
and monitor fresh/waste water distribution systems found within municipalities. The system
is unique because it is preconfigured and can be easily modified by customers without the
need for outside programmers.

Environmental Products Building on the success of the Waterless Pelican sweeper, Elgin
Sweeper launched the Waterless Eagle sweeper in 2004 with immediate success supporting
customers working in fine particulates or demanding water conservation. The innovative
expertise at Elgin Sweeper is reflected by the fact that new products generated 33% of
sales in 2004.

Jetstream released its first 500-horsepower waterblaster for mechanized cleaning of
power plants. Leach introduced a new front loader refuse vehicle designed for super heavy-
duty commercial applications. This vehicie has demonstrated outstanding performance in
initial customer applications.

Vactor/Guzzler introduced sewer cleaning and industrial vacuum vehicles with higher
clearance dumping capability to allow customers more flexibility in offloading debris.

Fire Rescue Responding to the increasing emphasis on homeland security in the United States
E-ONE introduced a number of new vehicles for the emergency services segment, including
a Mobile Command and Communication Center used by government agencies during the 2005
Super Bowl.
During 2004, E-ONE also introduced the Emergency Response Vehicle which has enhanced
emergency medical system capability to better meet the changing mission of fire service.
E-ONE expanded its leadership role in fire rescue ladder systems with a 114-foot rotating
ladder platform, increasing the presence of our unique Bronto Skylift technology in North
American markets.

Tool At die component manufacturing plants in the United States and Portugal, we developed
in-house capabilities for applying titanium coatings to our punch products to make them

more durable. We also expanded our mold base product offering to include sizes up to 30
inches in length, which enables us to better serve customers requiring customized products.
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Shareholder Information

Annual Meeting of Shareholders

Wednesday, April 27, 2005, 11:00 a.m., Doubletree Guest Suites
& Conference Center, 2111 Butterfield Road, Downers Grove,
llinois 60515.

Common Stock Data

Federal Signal Corporation’s Common Stock is listed and traded
on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol FSS and

is quoted in financial press listings as "FedISgni”or “FdSgnl”.
The company expects to continue paying regular guarterly cash
dividends as it has done since 1948, depending, of course, on
future earnings, financial condition and capital requirements.

Transfer Agent and Registrar

National City Bank is the transfer agent and registrar for Federal
Signal Common Stock. Notices regarding change of address

and inguiries regarding lost dividend checks, lost or stolen stock
certificates and transfers of stock, other than a purchase and sale
which must be handled through a broker, should be directed to
National City Bank, Corporate Trust Operations, Locator 5352,
P.O. Box 92301, Cleveland, Ohio 44193-0900, 800-622-6757.

Dividend Reinvestment Plan

This plan enables Federal Signal shareholders, who hold at least
50 shares in their own name to automatically and regularly apply
common stock cash dividends toward the purchase of additional
shares of common stock. Participants have the option of
purchasing more common shares through the plan with direct
cash payments. The company pays all bank service fees and
brokerage commissions for common stock purchased through the
plan. At year-end 2004, 1,740 shareholders (52% of record
holders) were enrolled in the plan. This represents about 4% of
outstanding stock or 2.0 million shares participating in the plan.
tnquiries regarding enroliment in the plan or questions concerning
established accounts should be directed to National City Bank,
Corporate Trust Operations, Locator 5352, P.O. Box 94946,
Cleveland, Ohio 44101-4946, 800-622-6757.

Contacting Directors

You may contact the Audit Committee, the Nominating and
Governance Committee, any director or group of directors on an
anonymous/confidential basis by addressing your letter to Federal
Signal Corporation, P.O. Box 98277, Chicago, lllinois 60693.

Reports

A copy of the company's 10-K, including the consolidated

financial statements, is available on Federal Signal's website at
www.federalsignal.com or by contacting the Office of the Secretary,
Federal Signal Corporation, 1415 West 22nd Street, Oak Brook,
llinois 60523-2004, 630-954-2021.

Investor Relations
Stephanie K. Kushner, Vice President and Chief Financial Officer,
630-954-2000.

Shareholders

Some of Federal Signal's shareholders have their shares registered

in their broker's name or “street” name. If you are a “street” name
holder and are not receiving company communications directly or in a
timely manner, we would be pleased to send this information to you if
you will send us your name and address. Federal Signal had a total of
approximately 21,000 “street” name and record shareholders at
year-end 2004.

Webcast of Quarterly Conference Call

The company anticipates quarterly earnings press releases followed
by a conference call later the same day following the end of each
fiscal guarter. Detailed information on the next press release and
conference call will be available on Federal Signal's website at
www.federalsignal.com at the end of each fiscal quarter.

Dividend Dates »
Federal Signal Corporation anticipates the following cash
dividend dates for 2005:

Record Date Payment Date

March 15 April 4
June 15 July 5
September 15 October 3

December 15 January 4 (2006)

Trademarks

APD, Atkinson Dynamics, Bronto, Bronto Skylift, Clapp Dico, Dayton,
Eagle, Elgin, E-ONE, Federal, Federal Signal, Guzzler, Jetstream, Leach,
Manchester, Mini-Jet, NRL, OTM, P.C.S., Pauluhn, Pelican, Plastisol,
RAVQ, Saulsbury, SCADA, Stinger Spike System, Superior, Target Tech,
Vactor, VAMA, Victor, Wittke and BF are trademarks of Federal Signal
Corporation or its subsidiaries.
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Board of Directors

Fram Jeft to right: Robert M. Gerrity, Paul W. Jones, James C. Janning, Robert D. Welding, Charles R. Campbell,
Robert S. Hamada and Joan E. Ryan

James C. Janning, 57 @ # % Robert M. Gerrity, 67 @

Chairman of the Board
Federal Signal Corporation
Group President

Harbour Group, Ltd.
Elected 1993

Charles R. Campbell, 65 A ®
Principal, The Everest Group
Elected 1998

Executive Council

Retired, Vice Chairman
New Holland n.v
Elected 2003

Robert S. Hamada, 67 ae %
Edward Eagle Brown
Distinguished Service
Professor of Finance Emeritus
Graduate School of Business
University of Chicago

Elected 2003

Paul W. Jones, 56 @ &
President and
Chief Operating Officer
A.0. Smith Corparation
Elected 1998

Joan E. Ryan, 48 a %
Elected 2002

Robert D. Welding, 56 %
President and

Chief Executive Officer
Federal Signal Corporation
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PART 1

Item 1. Business.

Federal Signal Corporation, founded in 1901, was reincorporated as a Delaware Corporation in 1969. The
Company is a worldwide manufacturer and supplier of street cleaning, vacuum loader and refuse collection
vehicles; fire rescue vehicles; safety, signaling and communication equipment, parking systems and tooling
products. Federal Signal Corporation and its subsidiaries (referred to collectively as the “Company” or
“company” herein, unless context otherwise indicates) operates manufacturing facilities in 42 plants around
the world in 12 countries serving customers in North America, South America, Europe and Asia. The
Company also provides customer and dealer financing to support the sale of its vehicles.

Narrative Description of Business

Products manufactured and services rendered by the Company are divided into four major operating
groups: Environmental Products, Fire Rescue, Safety Products and Tool. The individual operating companies
are organized as such because they share certain characteristics, including technology, marketing, distribution
and product application, which create long-term synergies.

Financial information (net sales, foreign sales, export sales, operating income and identifiable assets)
concerning the Company’s four operating segments as of and for the three years ended December 31, 2004
included in Note O of the financial statements contained under Item 8 of the Form 10-K is incorporated
herein by reference. ‘

- Environmental Products Group

The Environmental Products Group manufactures and markets worldwide a full range of street cleaning,
vacuum loader and refuse collection vehicles as well as high-performance water blasting equipment. Products
are also manufactured for the emerging markets of hydro-excavation, glycol recovery and surface cleaning.
The group competes under the Elgin, RAVO, Vactor, Guzzler, Jetstream and Leach brand names. The
group’s vehicles and equipment are manufactured in North America and Europe.

Through the Elgin brand name, the Company is the leading US brand of street sweepers primarily
designed for large-scale cleaning of curbed streets, parking lots and other paved surfaces utilizing mechanical
sweeping, vacuum and recirculating air technology for cleaning. RAVO is a market leader in Europe for high-
quality, compact and self-propelled sweepers that utilize vacuum technology for pick-up.

Vactor is a leading manufacturer of municipal combination catch basin/sewer cleaning vacuum trucks.
Guzzler is a leader in industrial vacuum loaders that clean up industrial waste or recover and recycle valuable
raw materials. Jetstream manufactures high pressure waterblast equipment and accessories for commercial
and industrial cleaning and maintenance operations.

In September and October 2002, the group acquired Leach Company (“Leach”) and Wittke, Inc.
(“Wittke™). The acquisitions of Leach and Wittke diversified the Company’s environmental vehicle offering
with a line of refuse hauling products that was able to leverage the group’s pre-existing dealer channel,
integrate Leach’s already existing dealer network and incorporate Wittke’s direct distribution channel. In June
2004, the refuse product lines were consolidated under the single brand name, Leach, and will be
manufactured solely at the Company’s Medicine Hat, Alberta facility beginning in April 2005. Refuse truck
body sales aggregated 20% of total group sales in 2004.

Fire Rescue Group

The Fire Rescue Group manufactures a broad range of fire rescue vehicles in its facilities located in
North America and Europe. The group sells vehicles under the following brand names: E-ONE, Superior,
Saulsbury and Bronto Skylift.



E-ONE is a leading brand of aluminum, custom-made fire rescue, airport rescue and firefighting vehicles.
Superior brand trucks are manufactured and distributed primarily for the Canadian market and US wildlands
markets. Under the Bronto Skylift brand name, the Company manufactures vehicle-mounted aerial access
platforms in Finland. The Company also produces stainless-steel bodied fire trucks and rescue vehicles under
the Saulsbury brand name.

Safety Products Group

The Safety Products Group manufactures emergency vehicle warning lights and sirens; industrial and
outdoor signaling, warning, lighting and communication devices and parking revenue and access control
systems. Products are sold under the Federal Signal, Target Tech, VAMA, Pauluhn, Victor and Federal APD
brand names. The group operates manufacturing facilities in North America, South America, Europe and
South Africa. Many of the group’s products are designed in accordance with various regulatory codes and
standards, and meet agency approvals such as Underwriters Laboratory (UL), International Electrotechnical
Commission (IEC) and American Bureau of Shipping (ABS).

Tool Group

The Tool Group manufactures a broad range of consumable carbide and superhard insert tooling for
cutoff, drilling, milling and deep grooving metal cutting applications; precision tooling, ejector pins, core pins,
sleeves and accessories for the plastic injection mold industry and precision tooling and die components for the
metal stamping industry. Tooling products are marketed under the Dayton, Manchester, ClappDico and PCS
brand names and manufactured in North America, Europe and Asia.

Restructurings

In June 2004, the company announced the implementation of the first steps of a broad restructuring
initiative aimed at enhancing the company’s competitive profile and creating a solid foundation for annual
revenue growth: targeted in the high single digits. The measures announced addressed three key issues:
improving the profitability of the Fire Rescue Group and refuse truck body business, divesting non-strategic
business activities, and improving the company’s overhead cost structure.

The initiatives included the following restructuring plans and divestitures:

« Closure of Preble, New York plant — By the end of 2004, the company had closed its 120,000 square
foot production facilities in Preble, New York and consolidated US production of fire rescue vehicles
into its Ocala, Florida operations.

« Sale of interest in Plastisol B.V. Holdings — The company sold its 54% majority ownership interest in
Plastisol B.V. Holdings to its minority partner. The company acquired its ownership interest in Plastisol
in 2001. Plastisol manufactures glassfiber reinforced polyester fire truck cabs and bodies mainly for the
European and Asian markets.

+ Sale of Kelowna components production site — The company sold its Kelowna production facility in
British Columbia to a management-led buyout group. The facility, which produced components for
Class 8 trucks and also supplied certain components for Wittke refuse truck bodies, was acquired as
part of the Wittke refuse truck body acquisition in 2002.

¢+ Closure of Leach production facility — The company moved forward on its decision to close its Leach
production facility in Oshkosh, Wisconsin, and consolidate production of rear-loading refuse vehicles
into its facility in Medicine Hat, Alberta. Concurrent with this move, production of Road Wizard
sweepers has been transferred from Medicine Hat to the company’s sweeper plant in Elgin, [llinois.
This consolidation was in process at the end of 2004 and the company expects to complete the project
by the end of the first quarter of 2005.




» Safety Storage Inc. joint venture — In June 2004, the company concluded the sale of its 30% minority
ownership interest in Safety Storage, Inc. to the majority owner. Safety Storage makes mobile
buildings for the off-site storage of hazardous waste.

» Industrial leasing portfolio — In 2001, the company made the strategic decision to exit the leasing
business for industrial customers. During 2004, the company sold a $10 million portion of its industrial
leases to a financial institution and continued the runoff of the rest of the portfolio; proceeds were used
to pay down debt.

» Dayton France manufacturing consolidation — The company began reducing certain manufacturing
activities at Dayton France and transferred related production to its facility in Portugal, which began
operations in 2003. The transfer is part of a broader plan to reduce fixed overhead and shift the
manufacturing footprint to lower-cost locations.

In addition to the above actions, the company, in the fourth quarter of 2004, also divested Technical Tool,
Inc., a small manufacturer of precision beverage can tooling, and Justrite Manufacturing Company, L.L.C., a
leading manufacturer of products for the safe storage of flammable and hazardous materials.

Financial Services

The Company offers a variety of short- and long-term financing primarily to its Environmental Products
and Fire Rescue independent dealers and customers. The company provides financing, principally through
sales-type leases, to (i) municipal and industrial customers to purchase vehicles and (ii) independent dealers
to finance the purchase of vehicle inventory. Financings are typically secured by vehicles and, in the case of
the independent dealers, the dealer’s personal guarantee. In late 2001, the Company decided to significantly
curtail new leasing to industrial customers, who generally have a higher credit risk; this portfolio continues to
diminish over time as no new leases were extended to industrial customers in 2004. At December 31, 2004, the
Company’s investment in leases to industrial customers declined to 8% of its lease financing and other
receivables.

Marketing and Distribution

The Company believes its national and global dealer network for Environmental Products and Fire
Rescue vehicles distinguishes itself from its competitors. Dealer representatives are on-hand to demonstrate
the vehicles’ functionality and capability to customers as well as service the vehicles on a timely basis. The
acquisitions of the refuse businesses provided a unique opportunity for the Company’s already existing dealers
to offer another product line in their showrooms.

The Safety Products Group companies sell to industrial customers through manufacturers’ representa-
tives who sell to approximately 2,000 wholesalers. Products are also sold to governmental customers through
more than 900 active independent distributors as well as through original equipment manufacturers and direct
sales. International sales are made through the group’s independent foreign distributors or on a direct basis.

Because of the nature of the Tool Group’s products, volume depends mainly on repeat orders from
thousands of customers. Many of the Tool Group’s customers have some ability to produce certain products
themselves, but at a cost disadvantage. Major market emphasis is placed on quality of product, delivery and
level of service. Inventories are maintained to assure prompt service to the customer with the average order for
standard tools filled in less than one week for domestic shipments and within two weeks for international
shipments.

Customers and Backlog

Approximately 38%, 31% and 31% of the Company’s total 2004 orders were to US municipal and
government customers, US commercial and industrial customers and non-US customers, respectively. No
single customer accounted for a material part of the Company’s business.
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The company’s US municipal and government customers depend on tax revenues. A sluggish industrial
economy, therefore, will eventually impact a municipality’s revenue base as jobs are lost and profits decline.
Generally, the municipal trough lags far enough behind the industrial slowdown such that the industrial
economy is growing again by the time municipalities reduce their spending. The US economic downturn from
2001 to 2003 lasted longer than expected, allowing spending cuts by municipalities to affect the company
during the same time period as weak industrial demand was experienced. During 2004, the company saw
municipal and governmental orders flat to 2003 levels. Orders for fire apparatus declined but were offset by
increases in most of the company’s other products.

The Company’s backlog totaled $432 million and $347 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. The 25% increase is primarily due to a $47 million airport parking project received from the New
York and New Jersey Port Authority, strong domestic and international demand for sweepers and increased
orders for vacuum trucks. A substantial majority of the orders in backlog at December 31, 2004 are expected
to be filled within the current fiscal year.

Suppliers

The Company purchases a wide variety of raw materials for use in the manufacture of its products from
around the world, although the majority of current purchases are from North American sources. To minimize
availability, price and quality risk, the Company is party to numerous supplier strategic alliances. Although
certain materials are obtained from either a single-source supplier or a limited number of suppliers, the
Company has identified alternative sources to minimize the interruption to its business in the event of supply
problems.

Components critical in the production of the Company’s vehicles (such as engines, transmissions,
drivetrains, axles and tires) are purchased from a select number of suppliers and may be specified by the
customer. The Company also purchases raw and fabricated aluminum and steel as well as commercial chassis
with certain specifications from a few sources.

The Company believes it has adequate supplies or sources of availability of the raw material and
components necessary to meet its needs. However, there are risks and uncertainties with respect to the supply
of certain of these raw materials that could impact their price and availability in sufficient quantities.

During 2004, rapidly increasing prices and tighter availability of steel significantly affected the company’s
financial performance, particularly in its refuse truck body and fire rescue operations. Steel and steel-product
suppliers increased pricing and imposed surcharges on a significant portion of the company’s purchased
materials. The Company was unable to fully recover these increases from its customers due to the nature of
the municipal bidding process and sales cycle.

Competition

Within the Environmental Products Group, Elgin is recognized as the market leader among several
competitors and differentiates itself primarily on product performance. RAVO also competes on product
performance through its vacuum technology and successfully leads in market share for compact sweepers
among several regional European manufacturers. Vactor and Guzzler both maintain the leading position in
their respective marketplaces by enhancing product performance with leading technology and application
flexibility. Jetstream is the market leader in the in-plant cleaning segment competing on price and delivery
performance. Leach is third in market share for refuse bodies; its vehicles compete on product performance
through technology and service delivery via the group’s dealer network.

E-ONE is a leading manufacturer of US aluminum-bodied fire apparatus and custom chassis in a market
served by approximately ten key manufacturers and approximately 90 small regional manufacturers. With its
unique welded, extruded aluminum design, E-ONE is the US market leader in aerials. In addition, E-ONE is
the global market share leader of industrial pumpers serving the petrochemical industry with two primary
international competitors and a few smaller manufacturers. E-ONE also competes with six manufacturers
worldwide in the production of airport rescue and firefighting vehicles, consistently holding at least a number
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two position. The Saulsbury product line complements these offerings with stainless steel-bodied fire trucks
and rescue vehicles. Bronto Skylift is the foremost manufacturer of high reach telescoping platforms for the
global fire rescue and electric utility markets.

Within specific product categories and domestic markets, the Safety Products Group companies are
typically the leaders among three to four strong competitors and several additional ancillary market
participants. The group’s international market position varies from leader to ancillary participant depending on
the geographic region and product line. Generally, competition is intense as to all of the group’s products and
is based on price, including competitive bidding, reputation, performance and servicing.

The Tool Group companies compete with several hundred competitors worldwide. In North America, the
Company holds a share position from number one to number three depending on the product offering.

Research and Development

The information concerning the Company’s research and development activities is included in Note O of
the financial statements contained under Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

Patents and Trademarks

The Company owns a number of patents and possesses rights under others to which it attaches
importance, but does not believe that its business as a whole is materially dependent upon any such patents or
rights. The Company also owns a number of trademarks that it believes are important in connection with the
identification of its products and associated goodwill with customers, but no material part of the Company’s
business is dependent on such trademarks.

Employees

The Company employed over 6,100 people in ongoing businesses at the close of 2004 as compared to
nearly 6,500 employees at the end of 2003. Approximately 10% of the Company’s domestic hourly workers
were unionized at December 31, 2004. The Company believes relations with its employees continued to be
good.

Governmental Regulation of the Environment

The Company believes it is in substantial compliance with federal, state and local provisions that have
been enacted or adopted regulating the discharge of materials into the environment, or otherwise relating to
the protection of the environment. Capital expenditures in 2004 attributable to compliance with such laws
were not material. The Company believes that the overall impact of compliance with environmental
regulations will not have a material effect on its future operations.

Seasonality

Certain of the Company’s businesses are susceptible to the influences of seasonal buying or delivery
patterns. The Company’s businesses which tend to have lower sales in the first calendar quarter compared to
other quarters as a result of these influences are street sweeping, fire rescue products, outdoor warning,
municipal emergency signal products and parking systems.

Additional Information

The Company makes its annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports available, free of charge, through its Internet website
(http:/ /www federalsignal.com) as soon as reasonably practical after it electronically files or furnishes such
materials to the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”). All of the Company’s filings may be read or
copied at the SEC’s Public Reference Room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549. Information on
the operation of the Public Reference Room can be obtained by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC
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maintains an Internet website (http://www.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and information statements
and other information regarding issuers that file electronically.

Item 2. Properties.

As of December 31, 2004, the Company utilized 25 principal manufacturing plants located throughout
North America, as well as 14 in Europe, 1 in South Africa, 1 in South America, and 1 in the Far East.

In total, the Company devoted approximately 1.8 million square feet to manufacturing and 1.0 million
square feet to service, warchousing and office space as of December 31, 2004, Of the total square footage,
approximately 30% is devoted to the Safety Products Group, 14% to the Tool Group, 20% to the Fire Rescue
Group and 36% to the Environmental Products Group. Approximately 79% of the total square footage is
owned by the Company, with the remaining 21% being leased.

All of the Company’s properties, as well as the related machinery and equipment, are considered to be
well-maintained, suitable and adequate for their intended purposes. In the aggregate, these facilities are of
sufficient capacity for the Company’s current business needs.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The information concerning the Company’s legal proceedings included in Note N of the financial
statements contained under [tem 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 4. Subn;ission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders through the solicitation of proxies or otherwise
during the three months ended December 31, 2004.

PART I

Item 5. Market for Company’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

(a) Market Information

The Company’s common stock is listed and traded on the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”) under
the symbol FSS. At December 31, 2004, all of the Company’s retained earnings were free of any restrictions.
The information concerning the Company’s market price range data included in Note T of the financial
statements contained under Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Holders

As of January 31, 2005, there were 3,294 holders of record of the Company’s common stock.

(¢) Dividends

The information concerning the Company’s dividend per share data included in Note T of the financial
statements contained under Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans

The information contained under the caption “Proposal 2 — Approval of the Federal Signal Corporation
2005 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan” of the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2005 is incorporated herein by reference.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following table presents the selected financial information of the Company as of and for the eleven

years ended December 31, 2004:
2004

2003

2002

2001 2000 1999 1998 1997 1996 1995 1994

Operating Results (dollars
in millions):
Net sales{a) ...........

Income (loss) before
income taxes(a)......

Income (loss) from

continuing
operations(a) ........ $ (127) $ 351 § 435
" Operating margin(a) . ... ..0% 5.4% 7.8%
Return on average
common shareholders’
equity(b) ........... (.6)% 9.1% 12.1%
Common Stock Data {per
share):
Income (loss) from
continuing
operations — diluted .. $ (.26) § .73 § .95
Cash dividends .. ....... $ 40 $ 8 § 80
Market price range:
High ............... $ 2056 $ 2079 § 27.07
Low..........o...0. $ 1575 $ 1360 § 16.00
Average common shares :
outstanding (in
millions) ............ 48.2 48.0 45.9
Financial Position at Year-
End (dollars in millions):
Working capital(c) ..... $ 1887 $ 1142 $ 1676
Current ratio(c)........ 1.8 1.4 1.8
Total assets............ $1,1259 $1,171.0 $1,152.3
Long-term debt, net of
current portion . ... ... $ 3420 $ 3591 § 3445
Shareholders’ equity .... § 4127 § 4225 § 398.1
Debt-to-capitalization
ratio(d) . ............ 37% 40% 44%
Other (dollars in millions):
Orders(a) ............. $1,204.1 $1,091.6 $1,071.5 $1,039.1
Backlog(a) ............

Net cash provided by

operating activities(e) $§ 525 §
Net cash provided by
(used for) investing
activities(e) ......... $ 341
Net cash provided by
(used for) financing
activities ............ $ (80.4) $
Capital expenditures(a) $ 20.5 §
" Depreciation(a) ........ § 225§
Employees(a) ......... 6,134

(a)
(b)
(©)

continuing operations only

703 § 1021

(59.9) $ (382) $ (32.6) $

18.8
20.2
7,013

168 $
21 §
6,454

$1,139.0 $1,150.7 $1,001.6 $1,032.3 $1,068.4 $939.0 $894.9 $818.3 $774.4 $709.0 $588.0

$ (253) 8 420 $ 569 $ 602 $§ 793 $734 $727 $797 $855 $695 $652

$ 439 %
8.5%

545 $ 507 $ 510 §$ 537 $ 528 $470 § 412
104% 102% 101% 11.1% 11.4% 11.6% 11.8%

13.3% 164% 17.0% 191% 20.6% 238% 22.0% 223%

120 $ 1.10 §$ L.11
76 $ 74§ 71

$ 117 $ 115
$ 67 §

$1.03 3
58 8 50 8

.90
42

$ 2463 3%
$ 17.00 $

24.13
14.75

$28.06
$15.06

$27.50
$20.00

$26.75
$19.88

$28.25
$20.88

$25.88
$19.63

$21.38
$16.88

45.4 45.5 46.0 45.8 458 459 45.8 45.9

$ 1443 8
1.9
$1,0136 §

55.0
1.2
987.6

$ 66.7
1.3
$945.4

$109.5
1.6
$832.6

$ 351
1.2
$725.0

$ 328
L]
$700.6

$ 436
1.2
$618.0

$ 493
1.4
$519.2

$ 2327
$ 3594

o2

125.4
357.4

$134.4
$354.0

$137.2
$321.8

$ 321
$299.8

$ 343
$272.8

$ 397
$248.1

$ 349
$220.3

&3

44% 45% 42% 37% 30% 28% 29% 22%

$1,076.8 $981.5 $926.3 $848.5 $812.2 $668.3 $608.5

$ 4316 $ 346.6 $ 4153 § 3413 $ 3359 $325.7 $299.0 $248.4 $221.6 $187.0 $201.6

$ 690 $ 430 $339 $687 $677 $37.9 $426 $ 370

$ (10.1) § (710} § (33.1) § (43.4) $(81.3) $(86.2) $(41.9) $(30.7) $(67.8) $(80.1)

52 $409 § 222 $(275) 8 (41) $ 299 § 451
212 $220 $189 $ 179 $ 147 $138 § 94
186 %162 $ 138 $ 121 $106 $ 94 § 82
6,700 6,497 6,210 5,794 5410 5222 4,405

$ 178 §
$ 189 §
6,297

excludes cumulative effects of changes in accounting

working capital: current manufacturing assets less current manufacturing liabilities; current ratio: current

manufacturing assets divided by current manufacturing liabilities

(d)
(e)

manufacturing operations

see Note A regarding change in presentation of cash flows from lease financing and other receivables
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The selected financial data set forth above should be read in conjunction with the Company’s
consolidated financial statements, including the notes thereto, and Item 7 of this Form 10-K.

The information concerning the Company’s selected quarterly data included in Note T of the financial
statements contained under Item 8 of this Form 10-K is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.

Federal Signal Corporation manufactures a broad range of products, including: municipal and industrial
cleaning vehicles and equipment; fire rescue vehicles; safety, signaling and communication equipment and
tooling products. Due to technology, marketing, distribution and product application synergies, the company’s
business units are organized and managed in four operating segments: Environmental Products, Fire Rescue,
Safety Products and Tool. The company also provides customer and dealer financing to support the sale of
vehicles. The information concerning the company’s manufacturing businesses included in Item 1 of this
Form 10-K and Notes K and O of the financial statements contained under Item 8 of this Form 10-K are
incorporated herein by reference.

This Form 10-K, reports filed by the company with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
and comments made by management contain the words such as “may,” “will,” “believe,” “expect,”
“anticipate,” “intend,” “plan,” “project,” “estimate” and “objective” or the negative thereof or similar
terminology concerning the company’s future financial performance, business strategy, plans, goals and
objectives. These expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements within the meaning of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. Forward-looking statements include information concerning
the company’s possible or assumed future performance or results of operations and are not guarantees. While
these statements are based on assumptions and judgments that management has made in light of industry
experience as well as perceptions of historical trends, current conditions, expected future developments and
other factors believed to be appropriate under the circumstances, they are subject to risks, uncertainties and
other factors that may cause the company’s actual results, performance or achievements to be materially
different.

% &%

These risks and uncertainties, some of which are beyond the company’s control, include the cyclical
nature of the company’s industrial and municipal markets, technological advances by competitors, the
company’s ability to improve its operating performance in its fire rescue and refuse body plants, risks
associated with the execution of planned plant closures, increased warranty and product liability expenses,
risks associated with supplier and other partner alliances, changes in cost competitiveness including those
resulting from foreign currency movements, disruptions in the supply of parts or components from the sole
source suppliers and subcontractors, retention of key employees and general changes in the competitive
environment.




Results of Operations

The following table summarizes the company’s results of operations and operating metrics for the three-
year period ended December 31, 2004 ($ in millions except per share amounts):

2004 2003 2002

Net SAleS . oot e $1,139.0 $1,150.7 $1,001.6
Costofsales .. ... (895.7) (849.8) (719.2)
Operating eXpenses . ... ...ttt i (228.4) (234.4) (205.1)
Restructuring charges .............,...... e (15.4) (4.8)
Operating income (loss) .......... ... (.5) 61.7 77.3
Interest expense and other .............. e (24.8) (19.7) (20.4)
Income taxes ...ttt e 12,6 (6.9) (13.4)
Income (loss) from continuing operations .................. (12.7) 35.1 43.5
Discontinued operations and change in accounting principle . .. 10.4 2.2 (5.3)
Netincome (loss) ... ..o e $§ (23) $ 373 $ 382
Other data:

Orders . ... . SR $1,204.1  $1,091.6 $1,071.5

Operating margin . . . ... PP 0.0% 5.4% 7.7%

Income (loss) per share — continuing operations .......... $ (26) 8 73 % 95

Orders increased 10% in 2004 to $1.20 billion from $1.09 billion in 2003. US orders rose 8% with strength
in most municipal and industrial product lines. Orders in 2004 include a $47 million airport parking system
order and significantly lower municipal fire apparatus orders. Non-US orders increased 17% for the year with
8% due to stronger non-US currencies. The increase was driven by export orders for fire rescue apparatus and
environmental products, and growth in international orders for aerial devices. Sales declined 1% to
$1.14 billion as a result of weakness in the fire rescue and refuse truck body businesses. Excluding these
businesses, sales increased 7% in 2004. The company reported a loss from continuing operations of
$12.7 million, reflecting losses incurred by the fire rescue and refuse truck body businesses, restructuring
charges, and higher corporate and interest expenses. The loss from continuing operations was $.26 per share in
2004 compared to income of $.73 in 2003. Earnings from discontinued operations totaled $.22 per share in
2004 with the company recording a net loss of $.05 per share.

In 2003, diluted income per share from continuing operations totaled $.73 on sales of $1.15 billion. Sales
in 2003 rose over 2002’s results principally due to the full year effect of the refuse business acquisitions made
in late 2002 and increased Fire Rescue Group shipments. Despite the increase in sales, operating income
declined in 2003. Weak US municipal and industrial markets depressed sales of higher margin products in the
Safety Products and Tool groups and reduced earnings in the refuse truck body businesses.

The company recorded a net loss for 2004 of $2.3 million, which included $10.4 million of income from
discontinued operations. Discontinued operations include Justrite Manufacturing Company, L.L.C. and
Technical Tooling, Inc., which were divested by the company in the fourth quarter of 2004 and Plastisol B.V.
Holdings divested mid-year. Net income in 2003 was $37.3 million including a $.4 million after-tax loss on the
sale of the discontinued Sign Group operations. Net income in 2002 included an $8.0 million after-tax charge
relating to the cumulative effect of a change in accounting for goodwill required by Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”. In accordance with
SFAS No. 142, goodwill is no longer amortized beginning in 2002.

The company recorded an operating loss of $.5 million in 2004 compared to operating income of
$61.7 million in 2003. Included in the results were restructuring charges of $15.4 million in 2004 and
$4.8 million in 2003. In addition to the increased restructuring charges, the 2004 decline in operating results
was driven by losses incurred by the refuse truck body and fire rescue businesses and higher corporate
expenses. The refuse truck body operations experienced lower production volumes, higher raw material costs
related to steel and steel components, and higher operational expenses due in part to the impact of the stronger
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Canadian dollar. The Fire Rescue Group recorded a loss on a large, multi-year contract for fire apparatus and
experienced lower margins due largely to higher material costs related to steel and aluminum components and
low production. Operating income increased in Safety Products, Tool and Environmental Products businesses
excluding refuse truck bodies largely as a result of increased sales and generally stronger markets.

Interest expense increased 7% to $20.8 million in 2004 from $19.4 million in 2003. This increase was
primarily due to higher short-term interest rates in the second half of 2004. Interest expense declined 2% in
2003 from $19.8 million in 2002 as a result of slightly lower debt levels, favorable interest rate swap
agreements and amortization of deferred gains on previously-terminated interest rate swaps; these factors were
partially offset by higher borrowing costs as Standard and Poor’s reduced their short-term debt rating of the
company to A-3. In 2003, the company replaced commercial paper borrowings with higher cost committed
bank lines. The impact on 2003’s operations as a result of the debt rating reduction totaled approximately
$1.0 million.

The company’s 2004 effective tax rate of (49.8)% reflects the tax benefit of the loss incurred as well as
the impact of tax credits and the effect of tax-exempt municipal income. The company’s effective tax rate of
16.5% in 2003 was significantly below the 23.6% rate in 2002. The lower tax rate in 2003 reflects the effect of a
one-time benefit associated with the closure of a production facility in the United Kingdom (U.K.) and the
higher relative impact of tax credits and tax-exempt municipal income.

The company changed its assumptions for discount rates used in determining the actuarial present values
of accumulated and projected benefit obligations for its postretirement plans. The company reduced the
discount rate for its US plans to 6.00% as of December 31, 2004 from 6.25% and 6.75% as of December 31,
2003 and 2002, respectively. The changes in the assumptions resulted in additional pension expense of
$2.7 million in 2003 and a further increase of $1.5 million in 2004. In January 2004, the company also
established its other significant cost assumptions for its US pension plans as follows: expected long-term rate
of return on plan assets — 9.0%; rate of increase in compensation levels — 3.5%. These assumptions remain
unchanged for 2005. The company expects that the change in the discount rate assumption will further
increase 2005 pension costs by approximately $.5 million to $1.0 million, or about $.01 per share, compared to
2004. The company also recorded an after-tax charge of $.4 million in 2003 and $13.8 million in 2002 to other
comprehensive income representing the effect of an additional minimum pension liability. During 2003 and
2004, the company took some initial steps to move toward a common retirement benefit platform. One of
these steps has been to close off participation in defined benefit plans by new hires for a significant majority of
its operations. Among other things, the strategy provides for a more predictable retirement plan cost.

Certain of the company’s businesses are susceptible to the influences of seasonal buying or delivery
patterns. The company’s businesses which tend to have lower sales in the first calendar quarter compared to
other quarters as a result of these influences are street sweeping, fire rescue products, outdoor warning,
municipal emergency signal products and parking systems.

Restructuring Charges

The following table summarizes the company’s restructuring charges by segment for the two-year period
ended December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003
Environmental Products . ...t $84 $ 6
Fire RESCUE . . ..ot e e e 5.4
Safety Products ........ .. .. 3.3
000 . o 1.2 9
Corporate ................... B 4
TOtal oot $154 $4.8

In June 2004, the company announced the implementation of the first steps of a broad restructuring
initiative. The plan is aimed at enhancing the company’s competitive profile and creating a solid foundation for
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annual revenue growth in the high single digits. The measures included improving the profitability of the
refuse truck body, fire rescue and European tooling operations, divesting non-strategic business activities and
improving the company’s overhead cost structure.

The company decided to close its Leach production facility in Oshkosh, Wisconsin, and consolidate
production of rear-loading refuse truck bodies into its facility in Medicine Hat, Alberta. The company expects
to complete the plant closure and transfer production in early 2005. The Environmental Products Group
incurred $8.4 million in restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2004. The total consisted of a
$2.9 million impairment charge to adjust the value of certain manufacturing equipment to its net realizable
value, a $1.5 million write-off of a tradename valued as an intangible asset, $2.9 million relating to employee
severance and related costs and $1.1 million of other costs. The company expects to incur a total of
approximately $10.5 million in restructuring charges to complete its restructuring plan for the group with the
remainder occurring in 2005. The remaining $2.9 million expected to be incurred in 2005 principally relates to
employee severance and related costs.

The company closed its 120,000 square foot production facilities in Preble, New York and consolidated
US production of fire rescue vehicles into its Ocala, Florida operations as of December 31, 2004. The
consolidation was possible because successful lean manufacturing initiatives reduced manufacturing space
requirements in the Fire Rescue Group, and because of progress made to rationalize and structure the broad
array of vehicle offerings. The Fire Rescue Group incurred $5.4 million in restructuring charges for the year
ended December 31, 2004. The total consisted of $2.5 million in real property and manufacturing equipment
impairment, $2.6 million in employee severance and related costs and $.3 million of other costs. The company
expects to incur total restructuring costs of $6.1 million with the remainder occurring in 2005.

The company is also reducing the level of tooling production in France and transferring some production
to its Portugal facility, which began operations in 2003. The transfer is part of a broader plan to reduce fixed
overhead and shift the manufacturing footprint to lower-cost locations. The Tool Group incurred $1.2 million
in restructuring costs for the year ended December 31, 2004. The total consisted of manufacturing equipment
impairment of $.2 million and severance for terminated employees of $1.0 million. The company expects to
complete the consolidation by the second quarter of 2005 at a total estimated cost of $1.3 million.

The company’s corporate office incurred $.4 million in restructuring charges for the year ended
December 31, 2004; these costs related to outside services directly attributable to the restructuring plan.

In the first quarter of 2003, the company approved a restructuring plan that principally consisted of the
closure of two manufacturing facilities to improve operating efficiencies and reduce costs. The company closed
a facility in the United Kingdom and reduced headcount at other Safety Products Group businesses resulting
in restructuring costs of $3.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, principally consisting of
equipment impairments and employee termination and benefit costs. The Tool Group incurred $.9 million of
restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2003, principally consisting of severance costs relating
to the closure of a manufacturing facility in New York. The Environmental Products Group incurred
$.6 million of restructuring charges for the year ended December 31, 2003 relating to ceasing production of
certain sweeper products and reduction in personnel.

Environmental Products Operations

The following table presents the Environmental Products Group’s results of operations for the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003 2002
OTders. ..o et $389.7 $342.0 $294.2
Nt 8aleS . ..o 367.9 352.9 296.4
Operating income (1oss) .......... . . . i (3.8) 17.7 23.0
Operating margin . ........oou it (1.O)%  5.0% 7.8%



Orders were 14% higher in 2004, largely driven by sweeper and sewer cleaner trucks. The increase is from
both higher unit volume and higher pricing. US orders were up 12% principally reflecting stronger US
municipal demand. Non-US orders were up 30% on stronger orders for sweepers, sewer cleaning trucks, and
industrial vacuum trucks in the Middle East and Asia, and for sweepers in Europe. In 2003, orders increased
16% due to the refuse truck body business acquisitions. Excluding these acquisitions, orders were down 4%
primarily due to weaker US municipal demand in 2003.

Net sales increased 4% to $368 million in 2004 from $353 million in 2003. Combined, sweeper and sewer
cleaner sales increased 13% to more than offset the 20% lower refuse truck body sales. The group’s sales
increase resulted from slightly higher prices, a stronger Euro, accounting for approximately 1% of the increase,
and slightly higher unit volume. Refuse truck body sales were down due to the loss of business from one large
industrial customer. In 2003, net sales increased 19% due to refuse truck body acquisitions; excluding refuse
business, net sales declined 5% in 2003 as a result of weak US municipal demand and the company’s decision
to reduce industrial lending activity.

The group reported an operating loss of $3.8 million in 2004 compared to income of $17.7 million in 2003.
The group incurred $8.4 million in charges from restructuring activities in 2004. The poorer results were
mainly due to losses in the refuse truck body business, which was impacted by lower production volumes,
higher raw material costs and increased operating expenses driven by the stronger Canadian dollar. Refuse
steel and steel component costs increased $6.3 million in 2004 and were partially offset by higher sales pricing
levels. Higher steel and steel component costs were largely offset by sales price increases during the year in all
other businesses in the group. In 2003, operating income declined 23% from $23 million in 2002 principally
due to weakness in US municipal markets, lower financing revenues and one-time costs associated with
sweeper production facility consolidation and sweeper conversion to new EU standards.

Fire Rescue Operations

The following table presents the Fire Rescue Group’s results of operations for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003 2002
OTdETS . . ottt e e $355.8  $369.0 $373.6
Netsales ... i e 360.9 402.2 317.1
Operating income (10SS) .. ....vvrrr ettt i, (23.2) 14.8 11.4
Operating margin ...............ccoovuoi.,, P 64)% 3.7% 3.6%

Orders declined 4% to $356 million in 2004 from $369 million in 2003 primarily due to weakness in US
municipal and government demand more than offsetting increased non-US orders. The 2004 decline in orders
was caused by price increases, temporary restrictions placed by the company on stainless steel truck orders
while production was moved from Preble, New York to Ocala, Florida, and the company’s decision to reduce
discounting of fire apparatus. In 2003, orders declined 2% primarily stemming from weakness in US municipal
and government markets and lower export orders.

Sales declined 10% to $361 million in 2004 from $402 million in 2003 with the decline resulting
principally from lower volume partially offset by an increase in currency of 1%. The company estimates that
approximately 2-3% of the volume decline resulted from a change in sales and discounting terms with its
dealers. Increased shipments of wildland and brush products and non-US aerial products were more than
offset by declines in fire fighting and rescue vehicles for US markets. Net sales in 2003 increased as a result of
productivity improvements and stronger European and Canadian currencies.

The group recorded an operating loss of $23.2 million in 2004 compared to income of $14.8 million in
2003. Results in 2004 included $5.4 million in restructuring charges and a $10.6 million loss incurred on a
large multi-year contract for complex fire apparatus for the Royal Netherlands Air Force. Operational issues
throughout the year in the Ocala, Florida plant also adversely impacted profitability.
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Safety Products Operations

The following table presents the Safety Product Group’s results of operations for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003 ©2002
Orders.................. RO e, $2967 $228.7 $252.3
Netsales . ..vvu e e 249.2 2424 2374
Operating iNCOME . . ...\ vttt e it e e e e 32.9 283 313
Operating margin ............. ittty 132% 11.6% 15.7%

Orders increased 30% in 2004 including 20% from a $47 million airport parking system order for the Port
Authority of New York and New Jersey, 3% from emergency vehicular warning products, and 2% from
currency. US municipal and government orders increased 10% from strong demand for military and nuclear
warning systems and for municipal police products. In 2003, orders declined 7% following a large parking
system order received in 2002 for the Dallas/Fort Worth International Airport.

Net sales rose 3% to $249 million in 2004 from $242 million in 2003. Higher unit volumes in industrial
lighting and signaling and emergency vehicular warning systems contributed 3% and foreign currency impacts
contributed 2% to the sales increase. Partially offsetting these increases were lower parking revenue and
control systems, which declined in 2004 following strong sales in 2003 driven by a large project for the Dallas/
Fort Worth International Airport.

Operating income increased 17% to $32.9 million following depressed earnings in 2003 resulting from
costs related to the closure of a production facility in the U.K. and an unfavorable mix of product sales
lowering operating margins. Higher sales volumes made up 5% of the growth in 2004 and currency contributed
3%.

Tool Operations

The following table presents the Tool Group’s results of operations for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003 2002
OLdeIS . . .ttt e $161.8 $151.9 $151.4
Net sales ...ttt e 161.0 153.2 150.7
Operating income .. ........... e 15.3 14.9 18.0
Operating margin .. .........ovieerreunrinnree e, 9.5% 98% 11.9%

In the US, tooling orders increased 9% in 2004 as the US industrial economy strengthened from the prior
year. International orders were flat compared to 2003 as strength in Asian tooling markets, and to a lesser
extent Canadian tooling markets, was offset by weakness in the European cutting tool market throughout the
year. Net sales increased 5% to $161 million in 2004 from $153 million in 2003; approximately 2% of the
increase resulted from currency with most of the balance a result of increased volume. The increase reflects
stronger demand for industrial cutting tools and die components in the US, Canada and Asia. In 2003, sales
increased 2% mainly due to a stronger European currency and a weak US cutting tool market.

Operating income increased 2% to $15.3 million in 2004 from $14.9 million in 2003. The growth resulted
from increased sales volumes, higher pricing, and productivity improvements. While tool steel cost increased
during 2004, the group fully recovered the impact through increased sales prices. In 2003, operating income
declined 15% resulting from pricing pressures, costs and operating inefficiencies related to the closure of a
New York production facility, increased sales of third party resale products and significantly higher pension
and medical costs. The group incurred $1.2 million of restructuring charges in 2004 and $.9 million in 2003.
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Corporate Expense

Corporate expenses totaled $21.7 million in 2004, $14.0 million in 2003 and $12.4 million in 2002. The
increase in 2004 reflects higher expenses associated with firefighter hearing loss litigation, increased product
liability reserves, higher independent audit and audit staff expense to meet the requirements of Sarbanes-
Oxley Section 404, and the addition of centralized human resources and information technology departments.
The increase in 2003 reflects an increased bad debt provision and higher pension expense.

Legal Matters

The company has been sued by over 2,400 firefighters in 33 separate cases alleging that exposure to the
company’s sirens impaired their hearing. The company has successfully defended itself in over 40 similar cases
and contests the allegations. The discovery phase of the litigation began in 2004; the company continues to
aggressively defend the matter. For further details regarding this and other legal matters, refer to Note N in
the financial statements included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Financial Services Activities

The company maintains an investment ($197 million and $230 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively) in lease financing and other receivables that are generated by its Environmental Products and
Fire Rescue operations. The decrease in leasing assets primarily resulted from early loan payoffs, the sale of a
$9.6 million portion of the taxable leasing portfolio, and the continued runoff of the remaining taxable lease
portfolio resulting from the company’s decision to no longer extend new leases to industrial customers.
Financial services assets generally have repayment terms ranging from one to ten years. These assets are 91%
and 87% leveraged as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, consistent with their overall quality;
financial services debt was $178 million and $201 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Financial revenues totaled $12.2 million, $13.4 million and $16.1 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. The decline in 2004 reflects the sale of a portion of the company’s taxable portfolio and lower
financings of municipal product sales. The decline in 2003 reflected the company’s decision to cease financing
new industrial product sales and lower lending rates due to a declining interest rate environment.

Financial Condition, Liquidity and Capital Resources

During the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, the company utilized its cash flows from
operations to pay cash dividends to shareholders, to fund sustaining and cost reduction capital needs of its
operations, and to fund in whole or in part strategic acquisitions of companies operating in markets related to
those already served by the company. Beyond these uses, remaining cash was used to pay down debt and to
repurchase shares of common stock.

In 2004, the company began classifying all cash flows from lease financing and other receivables as part of
its operating activities. Cash flows from operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002
in the consolidated statement of cash flows have been revised to include changes in lease financing and other
receivables which have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation. Management decided to adopt
the above-described method as a result of concerns raised by staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission
regarding the company’s previous presentation. The company’s presentation of cash flows in previously issued
financial statements reflected the following:

+ Financial services revenues were recorded as a component of net income which is included in cash
flows from operating activities.

« Principal extensions and principal collections under lease financing agreements were each included in
cash flows from investing activities; no cash was received by the company on a consolidated basis when
a sale, recognized as a sales-type lease, was made to a customer.
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The consolidated statement of cash flows has been adjusted to reflect the fact that there is no cash
received by the consolidated entity upon the initial sale of inventory recognized as a sales-type lease and to
properly classify cash receipts from the sale of inventory as operating activities. A reconciliation of amounts
previously reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows to the amounts in the current presentation can
be found in Note A — Significant Accounting Policies.

~ The company’s cash and cash equivalents totaled $14.9 million, $10.0 million and $9.7 million as of
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The following table summarizes the company’s cash flows
for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

2004 2003 2002

Operating cash flow .......... .. .. i i $ 525 $ 703 $102.1

Dividends .. ...t (19.3)  (38.3) (36.0)
Capital expenditures . ...ttt (20.5) (16.8) (18.8)
Dispositions (acquisitions) of businesses ........................ 49.1 7.5 (48.1)
Purchases of treasury stock ........... ... ... . ... L, (.1) (4.4)
Borrowing activity, net .......... . . (62.4) (22.2) (1.1)
All other, net . . ... ... . e 5.5 (.1) (.8)
Increase (decrease) incash.......... ... ... ... .. ... ........ $ 49 § 3 §$ (.

Operating cash flow declined to $52.5 million in 2004 from $70.3 million in 2003 due to operating losses
incurred by the Fire Rescue Group and refuse truck body operations, higher corporate expenses, lower
proceeds ($7.7 million) from the termination of interest rate swaps and incremental payments of $5.4 million
relating to restructuring plans, partially offset by increased collections attributable to the company’s financial
services activities and the sale of a portion of the taxable leasing portfolio. In addition, the company made
contributions of $9.6 million to its pension plans in 2004 compared with $4.2 million in 2003. Operating cash
flow in 2003 declined from $102.1 million in 2002, in large part reflecting lower earnings, an increase in lease
financing receivables in 2003 compared to a significant decline in 2002, timing of customer advances, the
disproportionate increase in foreign sales with longer payment terms and multi-year contracts. Cash flows in
2003 also benefited from favorable settlements of interest rate swaps and foreign currency hedges as well as

continued improvements in inventory productivity as evidenced by inventory turns rising to 4.8 at Decem-
ber 31, 2003.

In 2004, the company disposed of Justrite Manufacturing Company, L.L.C. and Technical Tooling, Inc.
for cash proceeds of $40.1 million and $6.5 million, respectively. In addition, the company divested its 54%
majority interest in Plastisol B.V. Holdings to the minority partner for $2.5 million in cash and a note
receivable of $.4 million. These 2004 divestitures were in conjunction with the company’s restructuring
initiatives announced in June 2004. In 2003, the company completed the sale of the Sign Group for cash of
$7.5 million and a $4.2 million note receivable. The company acquired the refuse truck body businesses in
2002 for $101.3 million, funded with cash of $48.1 million and stock valued at $43.4 million plus the
assumption of $9.8 million of debt.

In 2004, the company repaid $62.4 million of debt by utilizing the proceeds from the sale of the three
aforementioned businesses as well as the positive cash flow from operations. In June 2004, the company
voluntarily reduced the size of its credit facility from $250 million to $200 million. At December 31, 2004,
$45 million was outstanding under this agreement.

In April 2003, Standard and Poor’s lowered the company’s debt rating from A-2 to A-3 making short-
term borrowing in the commercial paper market no longer feasible. After drawing on a portion of the
$300 million back-up credit facility to pay off the commercial paper outstandings, the company replaced the
$300 million facility in 2003 with a $250 million unsecured revolving credit facility maturing in November
2006 bearing interest at a variable rate of LIBOR plus .83%. At December 31, 2003, $75 million was
outstanding under this agreement. In June 2003, the company also secured $50 million in private placement
financing with increments maturing in 2008, 2010 and 2013 bearing interest at a variable rate of LIBOR plus
an average of 1.04%. The rating downgrade resulted in the company incurring an additional $1.0 million in
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borrowing costs in 2003. The incremental cost was partially offset by favorable interest rate swap agreements.
The company paid down $22.2 million of borrowings in 2003.

The company’s revolving credit facility contains covenants relating to a maximum debt-to-capitalization
ratio, minimum interest coverage and minimum net worth. Due to weak operating results, the company’s
results were below the minimum interest coverage covenant as of December 31, 2004. The company was
granted a temporary waiver of this covenant until April 1, 2005. As of December 31, 2004, the company was in
compliance with all financial covenants, as adjusted. At December 31, 2004, the company had borrowings of
$45 million against its revolving credit facility. In January 2005, the company voluntarily reduced its revolving
line of credit to $150 million due to reduced borrowing requirements. In March 2005, the company obtained a
permanent amendment to its interest coverage covenant. At December 31, 2004, total manufacturing debt was
$235 million, representing 37% of capitalization, down from 40% ($263 million) as of December 31, 2003.
The company believes that its financial services assets, due to their improved overall quality, are capable of
sustaining a leverage ratio of 91% at December 31, 2004. The company’s debt-to-capitalization ratio for its
financial services activities was 91% and 87% as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Cash dividends decreased to $19.3 million in 2004 from $38.3 million in 2003. In October 2003, the
company announced a 50% reduction in the quarterly dividend to improve its long-term position in view of the
further weakening of the US state and municipal markets and the lack of a conclusive rebound in the
industrial economy; the company paid dividends of $.40 per share in 2004. Cash dividends in 2003 increased
by $2.3 million from $36.0 million in 2002 due to the additional shares issued in late 2002 for the refuse
acquisitions; the company paid dividends of $.80 per share in 2003. In February 2005, the company reduced its
first quarter dividend to $.06 per share compared to $.10 per share in 2004,

The company anticipates that its financial resources and major sources of liquidity, including cash flow
from operations and borrowing capacity, will be adequate to meet its operating and capital needs in addition to
its financial commitments.

Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments

The following table presents a summary of the company’s contractual obligations and payments due by
period as of December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):
Payments Due by Period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1 - 3 Years 3 -5 Years S Years
Long-termdebt .................... $358.6  $18.6 $111.3 $80.2 $148.5
Operating lease obligations . .......... 26.4 6.2 8.6 51 6.5
Fair value of interest rate swaps....... 59 3 .8 .9 3.9
Fair value of foreign exchange contracts (2.9) (1.6) (1.3)
Total contractual obligations.......... $388.0 $23.5 $119.4 $86.2 $158.9

The company is party to various interest rate swap agreements in conjunction with the management of
borrowing costs. As of December 31, 2004, the fair value of the company’s net position would result in cash
payments of $5.9 million. Future changes in the US interest rate environment would correspondingly affect
the fair value and ultimate settlement of the contracts.

The company also enters into foreign currency forward contracts to protect against the variability in
exchange rates on cash flows of its foreign subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2004, the unrealized gain on the
company’s foreign exchange contracts totaled $2.9 million. Volatility in the future exchange rates between the
US dollar and Euro and Canadian dollar will impact final settlement.
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The following table presents a summary of the company’s commercial commitments and the notional
amount expiration by period ($ in millions):

Notional Amount Expiration by Period
Less than 1-3 3-5

Total 1 Year Years Years
Security bonds for casualty insurance policies.............. $29.5 $29.5
Financial standby letters of credit........................ 6.8 6.1 $ 7
Guaranteed residual value obligations .................... 34 28 $6
Guarantees of the indebtedness of others.................. 7 .6 .1 .
Total commercial commitments ......................... $40.4 $36.2 $36 §$6

Security bonds for casualty insurance policies relate to the company’s workers’ compensation, automo-
bile, general liability and product liability policies. Outstanding financial standby letters of credit represent
guarantees of performance by foreign subsidiaries that engage in cross-border transactions with foreign
customers.

In limited circumstances, the company guarantees the residual value on vehicles in order to facilitate a
sale. The company also guaranteed the debt of an independent dealer that sells the company’s vehicles. The
company believes its risk of loss is low; no losses have been incurred to date. The inability of the company to
enter into these types of arrangements in the future due to unforeseen circumstances is not expected to have a
material impact on its financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from
those estimates. The company considers the following policies to be the most critical in understanding the
judgments that are involved in the preparation of the company’s consolidated financial statements and the
uncertainties that could impact the company’s financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Allowances for Doubtful Accounts

The compa;xy performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers. The company’s policy is to establish,
on a quarterly basis, allowances for doubtful accounts based on factors such as historical loss trends, credit
quality of the present portfolio, collateral value and general economic conditions. If the historical loss trend
increased or decreased 10% in 2004, the company’s operating income would have decreased or increased by
$.3 million, respectively. Though management considers the valuation of the allowances proper and adequate,
changes in the economy and/or deterioration of the financial condition of the company’s customers could
affect the reserve balances required.

Warranty Reserve

The company’s products generally carry express warranties that provide repairs at no cost to the customer
or the issuance of credit. The length of the warranty term depends on the product sold, but generally extends
from six months to five years based on the terms that are generally accepted in the company’s marketplaces.
Certain components necessary to manufacture the company’s vehicles (including chassis, engines and
transmissions) are covered under an original manufacturers’ warranty. Such manufacturers’ warranties are
extended directly to end customers.

The company accrues its estimated exposure to warranty claims at the time of sale based upon historical
warranty claim costs as a percentage of sales. Management reviews these estimates on a quarterly basis and
adjusts the warranty provisions as actual experience differs from historical estimates. Infrequently, a material
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warranty issue can arise which is outside the norm of the company’s historical experience; costs related to such
issues, if any, are provided for when they become probable and estimable.

The company’s warranty cost as a percentage of net sales totaled 1.4% in 2004, 1.4% in 2003 and 1.0% in
2002. The increase in the rate in 2003 is primarily due to the acquisitions of the refuse truck body businesses in
late 2002 which experience higher warranty claims due to their usage pattern, and to the introduction of new
custom fire rescue vehicles that incurred higher warranty costs when used for the first time. Management
believes the reserve recorded at December 31, 2004 is appropriate. A 10% increase or decrease in the
estimated warranty costs in 2004 would have decreased or increased operatmg income by $1.6 million,
respectively.

Worker’s Compensation and Product Liability Reserves

The company is partially self~-insured for worker’s compensation claims with various stop-loss thresholds.
When a worker’s compensation claim is filed, a liability is estimated, if any is expected, to settle the claim.
The establishment of a liability for unpaid claims, including claims incurred but not reported, is based on the
assessment by the company’s claim administrator of each claim, management’s estimate of the nature and
severity of total claims and an independent actuarial valuation. The company utilizes a third-party administra-
tor to track and evaluate actual claims experience for consistency in the data used in the actuarial valuation.
While management believes the current reserve is adequate, a 10% increase or decrease in the average cost per
claim in 2004 would have decreased or increased operating income by $.3 million, respectively.

Due to the nature of the products manufactured, the company is subject to product liability claims in the
ordinary course of business. The company is partially self-insured for its product liability exposures; it records
a reserve when a potential loss associated with an asserted claim is probable and reasonably estimable. The
liability is based on an assessment of each claim by the company’s third party administrator, management’s
current knowledge of the matter and consultation with counsel. Management believes that the reserve
established at December 31, 2004 appropriately reflects the company’s risk exposure. The company has not
established any reserve for potential losses resulting from hearing loss litigation (see Note N); if the company
is not successful in its defense, it will record a charge for such claims at the time a judgment or settlement is
made.

Goodwill Impairment

In accordance with- SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, the company ceased
amortization of goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets effective January 1, 2002. SFAS No. 142 also
requires the company to test these assets annually for impairment; the company performs this test at the
beginning of the fourth quarter unless impairment indicators arise earlier. The company continues to amortize
definite-lived intangible assets over their useful life.

A review for impairment requires judgment in estimated cash flows based upon estimates of future sales,
operating income, working capital improvements and capital expenditures. Management utilizes a discounted
cash flow approach to determine the fair value of the company’s reporting units. If the sum of the expected
discounted cash flows of the reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairment loss is required against
the unit’s goodwill.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142’s transition rules, the company performed an assessment as of
January 1, 2002, the date of the statement’s adoption. This evaluation resulted in an $8.0 million impairment
charge in 2002 related to a niche Tool Group business. The annual testing conducted in 2003 and 2004 did not
result in any impairment.

Although management believes that the assumptions and estimates used were reasonable, a sensitivity
analysis for each reporting unit is performed along with the impairment test. The analysis indicated that a 5%
change in the operating margin assumption could result in a goodwill impairment in the Environmental
Products Group of approximately $2 million. A significant portion of the goodwill in this group arose with the
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acquisitions of the refuse truck body businesses in 2002, which have had poor operating results since
acquisition.

Financial Market Risk Management

The company is subject to market risk associated with changes in interest rates and foreign exchange
rates. To mitigate this risk, the company utilizes interest rate swaps and foreign currency options and forward
contracts. The company does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes and is not party to leveraged derivatives.

Interest Rate Risk

The company manages its exposure to interest rate movements by maintaining a proportionate
relationship between fixed-rate debt to total debt generally within established percentages of between 40% and
60%. The company uses funded fixed-rate borrowings as well as interest rate swap agreements to balance its
overall fixed/floating interest rate mix.

Of the company’s debt at December 31, 2004, 43% was used to support financial services assets; the
weighted average remaining life of those assets is typically under three years and the debt is match-funded to
the financing assets.

The following table presents the principal cash flows and weighted average interest rates by year of
maturity for the company’s total debt obligations held at December 31, 2004 ($ in millions):

Expected Maturity Date Fair
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Value
Fixedrate ........... $18.6 $83.6 $27.8 $352 $25.1  $118.3  $308.6 $310.3
Average interest rate .. 58% 58% 59% 58% 5.7% 5.5%
Variable rate .. ....... $52.4 $20.0 $ 300 $102.4 $102.4
Average interest rate . . 3.5% 4.8% 5.3%

The following table presents notional amounts and weighted average interest rates by expected
(contractual) maturity date for the company’s interest rate swap contracts held at December 31, 2004 ($ in
millions). Notional amounts are used to calculate the contractual payments to be exchanged under the
contract. Weighted average variable rates are based on implied forward rates in the yield curve at the reporting
date.

Expected Maturity Date Fair
2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 Thereafter Total Value

Pay fixed, receive

variable ............ $30.0 $10.0 $25.0 $10.0 $10.0 $850 §$ 8
Average pay rate. . ..... 4.5%  3.8% 50%  3.8% 3.8%
Average receive rate. . . . 28%  3.3% 3.8% 3.9% 4.1%
Receive fixed, pay

variable ............ $17.1 $17.1 $272  $352  $25.1 $98.3 $2200 $(6.7)
Average pay rate....... 58% 63% 65% 66% 6.6% 6.4%
Average receive rate . . . . 65% 65% 6.6% 62% 6.1% 5.7%

See Note H to the consolidated financial statements for a description of these agreements. All of the
interest rate swap agreements qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

Foreign Exchange Rate Risk

.

The company has foreign currency exposures related to buying and selling in currencies other than the
local currency in which it operates. The company utilizes foreign currency options and forward contracts to
manage these risks.
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The following table summarizes the company’s foreign currency derivative instruments as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004 by expected settlement date ($ in millions):

Expected Settlement Date

2005 2006
Average Average
Notional Contract Notional Contract Fair
Amount Rate Amount Rate Total Value
Forward contracts:
Buy Eures, sell US dollars......... $13.9 1.34 $13.9 §$ .1
Buy Canadian dollars, sell US
dollars . ........... ...t 7.1 1.40 $7.1 1.40 14.2 2.4
Other currencies ................. _ 67 . _67
Total forward contracts.......... 27.7 7.1 34.8 2.5
Options:
Buy Canadian dollars, sell US
dollars . ...... ... ... ... ... ... 16.7 1.20 16.7 4
Buy US dollars, sell Euros......... _ 84 1.20 . _ 84
Total options .................. 25.1 . 251 4
Total foreign currency derivatives . . . .. $52.8 $7.1 $59.9 $2.9

See Note H to the consolidated financial statements for a description of these agreements. All of these
derivative instruments qualify for hedge accounting treatment.

Other Matters

The company has a business conduct policy applicable to all employees and regularly monitors
compliance with that policy. The company has determined that it had no significant related party transactions
for the three-year period ending December 31, 2004,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The information contained under the caption Market Risk Management included in Item 7 of this
Form 10-X is incorporated herein by reference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
of Federal Signal Corporation

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Federal Signal Corporation and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related consolidated statements of income (loss),
shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2004. Our
audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15(a). These financial
statements and schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express
an opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of Federal Signal Corporation and subsidiaries at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
and the consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2004, in conformity with US generally accepted accounting principles. Also, in our
opinion, the related financial statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements
taken as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the effectiveness of Federal Signal Corporation’s internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated

March 9, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
M g MLL?

Chicago, Illinois

March 9, 2005

except for Note E, as to which the date is
March 15, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
of Federal Signal Corporation

We have audited management’s assessment, included in Item 9A(b) of the accompanying Form 10-K,
that Federal Signal Corporation maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of Decem-
ber 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control — Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria). Federal Signal
Corporation’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and
for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal
control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating
management’s assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control,
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that,
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of
the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial
statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Federal Signal Corporation maintained effective internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the
COSO criteria. Also, in our opinion, Federal Signal Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective
internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income (loss), shareholders’ equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2004 of Federal Signal Corporation and our report dated March 9, 2005, except
for Note E, as to which the date is March 15, 20053, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

Sanct ¢ MLLP

Chicago, Illinois
March 9, 2005
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FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

. ASSETS
Manufacturing activities:
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents ......... ... ..
Accounts receivable, net of allowances for doubtful accounts of $2.3 million and
$2.5 million, respectively . ....... oo P
Inventories — NoOte B L. i e

OtheT CUTTENT B8BTS . . o\ v vttt et et ettt e et ettt e e e et e

TOtal CUITEIE ASSEES .\ v\ vt ittt ettt et et et e ettt et e e e
Properties and equipment — Note C ... ... .. e
Other assets

Goodwill, net of accumulated amortization. .......... ... it e

Other deferred charges and assets ... ... .ot e

Total manufacturing ASSETS . ... v v ittt e i e e
Net assets of discontinued operations .............. .o
Financial services activities — Lease financing and other receivables, net of allowances for

doubtful accounts of $3.9 million and $2.5 million, respectively, and net of unearned finance

revenue — Note D L ..o

T OtaAl BSOS . o vttt ettt e e e

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Manufacturing activities:
Current liabilities
Short-term borrowings — Note E. ... .. ..
ACCOUNES PAYADIE . ... e
Accrued liabilities
Compensation and withholding taxes........ ..o,
CUStOMET dEPOSIES . ..o v vttt ettt et e e
O heT . o
INCOmeE taXES . . .t e e s

Total current liabilities. . ... ... .o e
Long-term borrowings — Note E . ... ...
Long-term pension and other liabilities .. ........ ... ... .. i
Deferred income taxes — Note F. ...

Total manufacturing liabilities ........ ... i i e
Financial services activities — Borrowings — Note E ....... ... ... ... . ... i ..

Total Habilities. . . . ..ottt e e e e e
Shareholders’ equity — Notes I and J
Common stock, $1 par value per share, 90.0 million shares authorized, 48.6 million and
48.4 million shares issued, respectively ... i e e
Capital in excess of par value . ... .o i e
Retained earnings — Note E ... ... . i i e
Treasury stock, .4 million and .5 million shares, respectively, at cost ......................
Deferred stock awards . ... i
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
Foreign currency translation . ........ ... ittt i e
Net derivative loss, cash flow hedges. ... ... ... ... . .
Minimum pension lability . ...... ... o e

Total o e
Total shareholders’ equity .. ... i
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity . ........ ... i

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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December 31,

2004

2003

($ in millions)

$ 149 § 100
200.6 185.9
178.2 172.5

24.7 19.2
418.4 387.6
110.9 118.7
352.5 350.6

476 61.0
929.4 917.9

23.0
196.5 230.1
$1,125.9  $1,171.0

$ 189 $ 686

79.6 762

30.8 30.4

24.5 21.2

75.9 65.6

2.6
229.7 264.6
215.7 194.1

34.3 49.1

55.1 39.4
5348 5472
178.4 201.3 -
713.2 748.5

48.6 48.4

94.4 91.9
295.8 3174
(13.6)  (14.8)

(3.1) (2.3)

3.1 (3.7)
1.7 (2)
(142)  (14.2)

(9.4)  (18.1)
4127 4225

$1,125.9  $1,171.0




FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2004 2003

2002

Nt SaleS ..o e e e $1,139.0 $1,150.7

Costs and expenses
Cost of 8ales . ...
Selling, general and administrative ................. ... ... ......
Restructuring charges ............ i i

($ in millions, except per share data)

Operating income (10SS) . ... ..ottt
Interest eXpense . ... ..ot e
Other expense, net. ... ... ittt i

Income (loss) before income taxes ............cooiviiiiiiii e,
Income taxes — Note F ... ... .. ... .

Income (loss) from continuing operations ..........................
Discontinued operations — Note L:

Income from operations, net of taxes of $2.2 million, $1.4 million and
$1.4 million, respectively ........ ... ... i

Gain (loss) on dispositions, net of taxes (benefit) of $7.9 million and
$(.2) million, respectively ....... ... ... i i

Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of taxes...............

Net income (loss) ............ e e e e $

Basic and diluted income (loss) per share

Income (loss) from continuing operations ........................ $

Discontinued operations:
Income from operations, net of taxes ................ ... ..
Gain (loss) on dispositions, netof taxes........................
Cumulative effect of change in accounting, net of taxes.............

Net income (loss)* ....... A P $

$1,001.6
(895.7)  (849.8)  (719.2)
(228.4)  (234.4)  (205.1)
(15.4) (4.8)
(.5) 61.7 77.3
(208)  (194)  (19.8)
(4.0) (.3) (.6)
(25.3) 42.0 56.9
12.6 (69)  (13.4)
(12.7) 35.1 43.5
3.7 2.6 2.7
6.7 (.4)
(8.0)
(23) § 373 § 382
(26) $ 73§ .95
08 05 .06
14 (01
(17)
(05) $ 78 $ .83

* amounts may not add to total due to rounding

~See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Common  Capital in Accumulated
Stock Excess of Deferred Other
Par Par Retained  Treasury Stock Comprehensive
Value Value Earnings Stock Awards Loss Total
($ in millions)
Balance at December 31,2001 ................. $47.4 $73.2 $312.2 $(455) $(2.2) $(25.7) $359.4
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ........... ... i i 38.2 38.2
Foreign currency translation. ................. 1.6 7.6
Unrealized losses on derivatives, net of
$1.2 million tax benefit.................... (2.1) 2.1)
Minimum pension lability, net of $8.1 million
tax benefit ... ... ... i (13.8) _(13.8)
Comprehensive income.................... 299
Issuance of stock for purchase of companies . . . ... .8 12.8 29.9 435
Cash dividends declared . ...................... (36.7) (36.7)
Compensation plans:
Exercise of stock options .................... 2 4.0 (1.3) 2.9
Stock awards granted ........... ... L. .1 24 2.5) —
Related tax benefits ..................... ... 1 1
Amortization of deferred stock awards ......... 1.5 1.5
Treasury stock:
Issuance ..... ... 1.9 1.9
Purchases ............ .o i, (4.4) (4.4)
Retirement . ..., 1) (1.4) 1.5 —
Other ... ... . . i (.1) (.1)
Balance at December 31,2002 ................. 48.4 91.1 3137 (18.0) (3.2) (34.0) 398.0
Comprehensive income:
Netincome ............. .ol 37.3 37.3
Foreign currency translation.................. 14.4 14.4
Unrealized gains on derivatives, net of
$1.1 million tax expense .. .................. 1.9 1.9
Minimum pension liability, net of $.2 million tax
benefit.......oooiiiiii (4) (.4)
Comprehensive income. ................... : 53.2
Cash dividends declared ....................... (33.6) (33.6)
Compensation plans:
Exercise of stock options ............. ... ... A 1
Stock awards granted .............. ... ... .. 8 (.8) —
Related tax benefits ........................ 2 2
Amortization of deferred stock awards ......... 1.2 1.2
Treasury stock:
Issuance ...t 33 33
Purchases ................. ... i 1) (.1)
Retirement . ......... .. ... ... o . (.2) 2 —_
Other ... ... (.1) (.2) 5 2
Balance at December 31,2003 ................. 484 91.9 317.4 (14.8) (2.3) (18.1) 422.5
Comprehensive income:
Netloss ... (2.3) (2.3)
Foreign currency translation.................. 6.8 6.8
Unrealized gains on derivatives, net of
$1.2 million tax expense . .................. 1.9 1.9
Comprehensive income. ................... 6.4
Cash dividends declared . ... ................... (19.3) (19.3)
Compensation plans:
Exercise of stock options .................... 1 4 5
Stock awards granted ......... ... oL 2 29 1 (3.2) —
Related tax benefits ............... ... ..., 5 5
Amortization of deferred stock awards ......... 1.0 1.0
Other .................... e (.1) (1.3) 1.1 1.4 1.1
Balance at December 31,2004 ................. $48.6 $94.4 $295.8 $(13.6)  $(3.1) $ (9.4) $412.7

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Operating activities
Netincome (l0SS) ..ottt i
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Cumulative effect of change in accounting ............................
(Gain) loss on disposition of discontinued operations ...................
Depreciation and amortization. ........ ... o i e
Non-cash restructuring charges .. ............ i,
Loss on minority interest divestiture. .............. ... oo,
Provision for doubtful accounts ......... ... ... .. ... ..
Deferred income taXes .. ..ottt
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects from acquisitions
and dispositions of companies
Accounts receivable .......... .. e
INVENtOTIES . .\ttt e e
Other CUITENt aSSES ...\ i ettt it e i ien e enans
Lease financing and other receivables. ..............................
Accounts payable ........ ...
Customer deposits. . ..o .ttt
Accrued liabilities . . ... ...
Income taxes . ... .. e
Other . e

Net cash provided by operating activities..................cooviieinn...
Investing activities
Purchases of properties and equipment ............. ... . 0 iiiniieniin.

Payments for purchases of companies, net of cash acquired, excludes
$43.5 million of common stock issued in 2002 .......................

Proceeds from sales of discontinued operations.........................
Other, met. . o e e e
Net cash provided by (used for) investing activities ......................
Financing activities
Reduction in short-term borrowings, net ............ ... ... .. ... .. ...
Proceeds from issuance of long-term borrowings .......................
Repayment of long-term borrowings. ..ot erneennn.
Purchases of treasury stock .. ......... i e
Cash dividends paid to shareholders................ ... ....... ... ...
Other, M. . o e

Net cash used for financing activities . ............. ... i,

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.........................
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ..........................

Cash and cash equivalents atend of year ...................... ... .....

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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For the Years Ended

December 31,

2004 2003 2002
($ in millions)
$(23) $373 382
8.0
(6.7) 4
22.4 224 22.2
7.1 1.9
2.9
3.3 3.2 1.7
13.8 5.0 2.4
(14.5) (5.6) (5.1)
(6.1) 6.8 2.1)
3.0 1.4 (4.2)
31.0 (5.1) 13.7
2.5 1.9 12.1
34 (9.6) 9.5
7.7 4.8
(19.5) (.1) 34
4.5 5.6 2.3
52.5 70.3 102.1
(20.5) (16.8) (18.8)
(48.1)
49.1 7.5
5.5 (.8) (4.1)
34.1 (10.1) (71.0)
(36.3) (68.2) (98.3)
46.0 97.2
(26.1)
(.1) (4.4)
(19.3) (38.3) (36.0)
7 3.3
(817) (59.9) (38.2)
49 3 (7.1)
10.0 9.7 16.8
$149 $100 §$ 97




FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
($ in millions, except per share data)

NOTE A — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation: The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Federal
Signal Corporation and all of its subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been
eliminated.

Change in presentation of cash flows from lease financing and other receivables: In 2004, the company
began classifying all cash flows from lease financing and other receivables as part of its operating activities.
Cash flows from operating activities for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 in the consolidated
statement of cash flows have been revised to include changes in lease financing and other receivables which
have been reclassified to conform to the 2004 presentation. Management decided to adopt the above-described
method as a result of concerns raised by staff of the Securities and Exchange Commission regarding the
company’s previous presentation. The company’s presentation of cash flows in previously issued financial
statements reflected the following:

» Financial services revenues were recorded as a component of net income which is included in cash
flows from operating activities.

» Principal extensions and principal collections under lease financing agreements were each included in
cash flows from investing activities; no cash was received by the company on a consolidated basis when
a sale, recognized as a sales-type lease, was made to a customer.

The consolidated statement of cash flows has been adjusted to reflect the fact that there is no cash
received by the consolidated entity upon the initial sale of inventory recognized as a sales-type lease and to
properly classify cash receipts from the sale of inventory as operating activities.

A reconciliation of amounts previously reported in the consolidated statement of cash flows to the
amounts in the current presentation follows:

2003 2002
Net cash provided by operating activities
Previously reported. .. ... o i $ 754 $ 884
Change in operating asset — Lease financing and other receivables . .. ... (5.1) 13.7
Currently reported .. ... ot e $ 703 $102.1
Net cash used for investing activities
Previously reported. . . ... i $ (152) $ (57.3)
Amounts previously included and now reclassified to operating activities
Principal extensions under lease financing agreements ............... 167.1 155.3
Principal collections under lease financing agreements ............... (162.0)  (169.0)
Change in operating asset — Lease financing and other receivables . .. ... 5.1 (13.7)
Currently Teported . ... ... .ttt $ (10.1) $ (71.0)

Cash equivalents: The company considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three-months
or less, when purchased, to be cash equivalents.

Accounts receivable and allowances for doubtful accounts: A receivable is considered past due if
payments have not been received within agreed upon invoice terms. The company’s policy is generally to not
charge interest on trade receivables after the invoice becomes past due. The company maintains allowances for
doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments
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on the outstanding accounts receivable and outstanding lease financing and other receivables. The allowances
are each maintained at a level considered appropriate based on historical and other factors that affect
collectibility. These factors include historical trends of write-offs, recoveries and credit losses; portfolio credit
quality; and current and projected economic and market conditions. If the financial condition of the company’s
customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of the ability to make payments, additional
allowances may be required.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. At December 31, 2004 and 2003,
approximately 49% and 54% of the company’s inventories are costed using the FIFO (first-in, first-out)
method, respectively. The remaining portion of the company’s inventories is costed using the LIFO (last-in,
first-out) method.

Properties and depreciation: Properties and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation, for financial
reporting purposes, is computed principally on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. Property, plant and equipment and other long-term assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. If the sum of the
expected undiscounted cash flows is less than the carrying value of the related asset or group of assets, a loss is
recognized for the difference between the fair value and carrying value of the asset or group of assets. Such
analyses necessarily involve significant judgment.

Intangible assets: Intangible assets principally consist of costs in excess of fair values of net assets
acquired in purchase transactions. These assets are assessed yearly for impairment at the beginning of the
fourth quarter and also between annual tests if an event occurs or circumstances change that would more
likely than not reduce the fair value of a reporting unit below its carrying amount.

Stock-based compensation plans: The company has two stock-based compensation plans, which are
described more fully in Note I. The company accounts for these plans under the recognition and measurement
principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related interpretations.
Stock compensation expense reflected in net income relates to restricted stock awards which vest over four
years. With regard to stock options granted, no stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net
income, as all options granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the
underlying common stock at the date of grant.

The weighted average fair value per share of options granted was $5.96 in 2004, $2.97 in 2003 and $4.52
in 2002. The fair value of options was estimated at the grant date using a Black-Scholes option pricing model
with the following weighted average assumptions: risk free interest rates of 3.5% in 2004, 3.6% in 2003 and
2.7% in 2002; dividend yield of 2.1% in 2004, 4.5% in 2003 and 4.1% in 2002; market volatility of the
company’s common stock of .32 in 2004 and .28 in 2003 and 2002; and a weighted average expected life of the
options of approximately 8 years for 2004, 2003 and 2002.
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The following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share for the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004 if the company had applied fair value recognition provisions of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to all
stock-based employee compensation. For purposes of pro forma disclosure, the estimated fair value of the
options using a Black-Scholes option pricing model is amortized to expense over the option’s vesting period.

2004 2003 2002

Reported net income (loss) ... $(2.3) $37.3 $38.2
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense included in reported

net income (loss) net of related tax effects....................... .6 i 1.0
Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined

under the fair-value method for all awards, net of related tax effects (2.3) (L5 _(2.1)
Pro forma net income (10ss) ..ot $(4.0) $36.5 $37.1
Basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share

Reported met income (loss) ... $(05) $.78 § .83

Pro forma net income (10sS) . ...t i $(.08) $.76 §$ .81

The intent of the Black-Scholes option valuation model is to provide estimates of fair values of traded
options that have no vesting restrictions and are fully transferable. Option valuation models require the use of
highly subjective assumptions including expected stock price volatility. The company has utilized the Black-
Scholes method to produce the pro forma disclosures required under SFAS Nos. 123 and 148. In
management’s opinion, existing valuation models do not necessarily provide a reliable single measure of the
fair value of its employee stock options because the company’s employee stock options have significantly
different characteristics from those of traded options and the assumptions used in applying option valuation
methodologies, including the Black-Scholes model, are highly subjective.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Warranty: Sales of many of the company’s products carry express warranties based on the terms that
are generally accepted in the company’s marketplaces. The company records provisions for estimated warranty
at the time of sale based on historical experience and periodically adjusts these provisions to reflect actual
experience. Infrequently, a material warranty issue can arise which is beyond the scope of the company’s
historical experience. The company provides for these issues as they become probable and estimable.

Product liability and workers’ compensation liability: Due to the nature of the company’s products, the
company is subject to claims for product liability and workers’ compensation in the normal course of business.
The company is self-insured for a portion of these claims. The company establishes a liability using a third-
party actuary for any known outstanding matters, including a reserve for claims incurred but not yet reported.

Financial instruments: The company enters into agreements (derivative financial instruments) to
manage the risks associated with interest rates and foreign exchange rates. The company does not actively
trade such instruments nor enter into such agreements for speculative purposes. The company principally
utilizes two types of derivative financial instruments: 1) interest rate swaps to manage its interest rate risk, and
2) foreign currency forward exchange and option contracts to manage risks associated with sales and expenses
(forecast or committed) denominated in foreign currencies.
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On the date a derivative contract is entered into, the company designates the derivative as one of the
following types of hedging instruments and accounts for the derivative as follows:

Fair value hedge: A hedge of a recognized asset or liability or an unrecognized firm commitment is
declared as a fair value hedge. For fair value hedges, both the effective and ineffective portions of the changes
in the fair value of the derivative, along with the gain or loss on the hedged item that is attributable to the
hedged risk, are recorded in earnings and reported in the consolidated statements of income on the same line
as the hedged item.

Cash flow hedge: A hedge of a forecast transaction or of the variability of cash flows to be received or
paid related to a recognized asset or liability is declared as a cash flow hedge. The effective portion of the
change in the fair value of a derivative that is declared as a cash flow hedge is recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income. When the hedged item impacts the income statement, the gain or loss included in
accumulated other comprehensive income is reported on the same line in the consolidated statements of
income as the hedged item. In addition, both the fair value of changes excluded from the company’s
effectiveness assessments and the ineffective portion of the changes in the fair value of derivatives used as cash
flow hedges are reported in selling, general and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of
income.

The company formally documents its hedge relationships, including identification of the hedging
instruments and the hedged items, as well as its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking the
hedge transaction. Derivatives are recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at fair value in other assets and
other liabilities. This process includes linking derivatives that are designated as hedges of specific forecast
transactions. The company also formally assesses, both at inception and at least quarterly thereafter, whether
the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in either the fair
value or cash flows of the hedged item. If it is determined that a derivative ceases to be a highly effective
hedge, or if the anticipated transaction is no longer likely to occur, the company discontinues hedge
accounting, and any deferred gains or losses are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses.
Amounts related to terminated interest rate swaps are deferred and amortized as an adjustment to interest
expense over the original period of interest exposure, provided the designated liability continues to exist or is
probable of occurring.

Revenue recognition: The company recognizes sales when all of the following are satisfied: persuasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, the price is fixed or determinable, collectibility is reasonably assured and
delivery has occurred or services have been rendered. In most instances, this occurs at the time that title
passes to the customer based on the respective sales agreement. Infrequently, a sales contract qualifies for
percentage of completion or for multiple-element accounting. For percentage of completion revenues, the
company utilizes the cost-to-cost method. At the inception of a sales-type lease, the company records the
product sales price and related costs and expenses of the sale. Financing revenues are included in income over
the life of the lease. Management believes that all relevant criteria and conditions are considered when
recognizing revenues.

Product shipping costs: Product shipping costs are expensed as incurred and are included in cost of
sales.

Income per share: Basic net income per share is calculated using income available to common
shareholders (net income) divided by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding during the
year. Diluted net income per share is calculated in the same manner except that the denominator is increased
to include the weighted number of additional shares that would have been outstanding had dilutive stock
option shares been actually issued. The company uses the treasury stock method to calculate dilutive shares.
See Note P for the calculation of basic and diluted net income per share.
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NOTE B — INVENTORIES

Inventories at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2004 2003
Finished goods .............. .. ... .. ..... S PP $ 490 § 489
WOrK N ProCess . .. e 50.8 60.4
Raw materials. . ... ... 78.4 63.2
Total INVENTOTIES . . o oottt ettt et e e $ 1782 § 172.5

If the comp"any had used the first-in, first-out cost method exclusively, which approximates replacement
cost, inventories would have aggregated $189.9 million and $180.2 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

NOTE C — PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

Properties and equipment at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2004 2003
Land ... e $ 92 §$§ 95
Buildings and improvements . . ......... .. e 62.0 58.7
Machinery and equipment .......... ... ... . e 233.9 226.6
Accumulated depreciation. ........................ F (194.2)  (176.1)
Total properties and equipment . ...ttt $ 1109 §$ 1187

NOTE D — LEASE FINANCING AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As an added service to its customers, the company is engaged in financial services activities. These
activities primarily consist of providing long-term financing for certain US customers purchasing vehicle-based -
products from the company’s Environmental Products and Fire Rescue groups. A substantial portion of these
receivables is due from municipalities and volunteer fire departments. Financing is provided through sales-type
lease contracts with terms that generally range from one to ten years. The amounts recorded as lease financing
receivables represent amounts equivalent to normal selling prices less subsequent customer payments.

Leases past. due more than 120 days are evaluated and a determination made whether or not to place the
lease in a non-accrual status based upon customer payment history and other relevant information at the time
of the evaluation. ’ ‘ :

‘ Lease financing and other receivables will become due as follows: $76.6 million in 2005, $29.5 million in
2006, $23.4 million in 2007, $18.9 million in 2008, $15.6 million in 2009 and $36.4 million thereafter. At
December 31, 2004 and 2003, unearned finance revenue on these leases aggregated $24.5 million and
$32.1 million, respectively.

NOTE E — DEBT

Short-term borrowings at December 31 consisted of the following:

2004 2003
Revolving credit facility. . ...ttt $§ 450 § 750
Notespayable............o. i e 7.4 4.7
Current maturities of long-term debt. ... .. ... ... ... i 18.6 25.2

Total short-term BOTTOWINES . ... ... .ovovitetet i, $ 710  $ 1049
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Of the above amounts, $52.1 million and $36.3 million are classified as financial services activities
borrowings at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

In April 2003, Standard and Poor’s downgraded the company’s debt rating from A-2 to A-3; as a result,
the company stopped issuing commercial paper and drew necessary funds on its $300.0 million unsecured
revolving bank facility. In June 2003, the company entered into a new $250.0 million unsecured revolving
credit facility maturing in November 2006 with a syndicate of banks. The facility replaced the existing
$300.0 million credit facility. At December 31, 2003, $75.0 million was outstanding under this agreement
bearing interest at a variable rate of LIBOR plus .83%. The facility includes covenants relating to a maximum
debt-to-capitalization ratio, minimum net worth and minimum interest coverage ratio.

In June 2004, the company renegotiated its revolving credit facility covenants to exclude restructuring
and other one-time charges, to reduce the minimum interest coverage ratio from 3.0 to 2.5 and to voluntarily
reduce the size of the credit facility from $250.0 million to $200.0 million. The company’s results for the year
ended December 31, 2004 were below the minimum interest coverage covenant as of December 31, 2004, The
company obtained a temporary waiver of this interest coverage covenant from 2.5 to 1.9 until April 1, 2005.
The company was in compliance with all of its covenants, as adjusted, as of December 31, 2004. As of
December 31, 2004, $45.0 million was outstanding under this facility bearing interest at a variable rate of
LIBOR plus .83%. After year-end, due to reduced borrowing requirements, the company voluntarily reduced
its revolving credit line to $150 million, effective January 31, 2005. On March 15, 2005, the company obtained
a permanent amendment to the interest coverage covenant. This amendment redefined the coverage ratio and
reset the required minimum level to 2.0 for December 31, 2004 to June 30, 2005 and 2.5 for September 30,
2005 and thereafter. The company was in compliance with the amended covenant at December 31, 2004 and
expects to remain in compliance with its covenants.

Weighted average interest rates on short-term borrowings were 3.28% and 2.17% at December 31, 2004
and 2003, respectively.

Long-term borrowings at Decemb’ér 31 consisted of the following:

2004 2003
Unsecured borrowings:
6.79% note due in annual installments of $10.0 million due 2007-2011 ... .. $ 50.0 $ 50.0
-6.37% note due in annual installments of $10.0 million due 2005-2008 .. ... 40.0 50.0
6.60% note due in annual installments of $7.1 million due 2005-2011 ... ... 50.0 50.0
4.93% note due in annual installments of $8.0 million due 2008-2012 .. .... 40.0 400
524% note due 2012 . ... ... 60.0 . 60.0
5.49% note due 2006 . .. .. ... e 65.0 65.0
7.99% note due 2004 . ... e e e 15.0
Floating rate (3.59% and 2.21% at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively) note due 2008-2013. . ... ... ... . L 50.0 50.0
Other......... O 36 6
358.6 380.6
Fair value of interest rate Swaps. ...t (6.7) (7.9)
Unamortized balance of terminated fair value interest rate swaps............ 87 11.6
‘ 360.6 384.3
Less current maturities . ... ...ttt e _(18.6) (25.2)
Total long-term borrowings. .......... ... ... .o $342.0 $359.1
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Of the above amounts, $126.3 million and $165.0 million are classified as financial services activities
borrowings at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. -

In June 2003, the company entered into a $50.0 million private placement agreement to reduce reliance
on short-term debt. The agreement bears interest at a variable rate of LIBOR plus an average of 1.04% with
$20.0 million maturing in 2008, $20.0 million in 2010 and $10.0 million in 2013.

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt amount to approximately $18.6 million in 20035, $83.6 million in
2006, $27.8 million in 2007, $55.2 million in 2008, $25.1 million in 2009 and $148.3 million thereafter. The
fair values of these borrowings aggregated $360.3 million and $389.6 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

“For each of the above long-term notes, significant covenants consist of a maximum debt-to-capitalization
ratio and minimum net worth. At December 31, 2004, all of the company’s retained earnings were free of any
restrictions and the company was in compliance with the financial covenants of its long-term debt agreements.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, deferred financing fees totaled $1.8 million and $2.3 million,
respectively. ‘

The company paid interest of $24.1 million in 2004, $21.3 million in 2003 and $20.7 million in 2002. See
Note H regarding the company’s utilization of derivative financial instruments relating to outstanding debt.

NOTE F — INCOME TAXES

The provisions for income taxes for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004 consisted of the
following:

2004 2003 2002
Current: ‘
Federal .. ... $(32.7) $(6.0) $ 4.0
Foreign . ... . 6.4 7.0 6.0
State and local. ... (.1) 9 1.0
(26.4) 1.9 11.0
Deferred:
Federal . ... oo 15.5 6.2 2.4
Foreign . o e (1.0) (.8) )]
State and local. ... ... ... . {.7) (.4) 7

13.8 5.0 2.4
Total INCOME taXES .. ...ttt ittt e i e $(126) $ 69 $134
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Differences between the statutory federal income tax rate and the effective income tax rate for the three-
year period ended December 31, 2004 are summarized below:

2004 2003 2002
Statutory federal income tax rate ............ ... . ..., (35.00)% 350%  35.0%
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit ..................... (3.0) 14 1.5
Tax-exempt interest . ...ttt e (11.1) (7.0) (5.7
Benefits from shutdown of UK. facility.......................... 6.7)
Exports benefit ... ... ... e 4.3) (2.4) (1.6)
R&D tax credits ........ ..o i (4.6) (2.1) (1.3)
Reduction for prior years taxes ...........cuiiiieiiiniinnan. (.6) 1 (2.3)
Valuation allowances — foreign net operating losses. ............... 11.3 1.3 6
Other, met. . ... e e _(2.5) (3.1 2.6)
Effective income taxrate ... ........ ..o 498)% 165%  23.6%

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31 are summarized as follows:

2004 2003
Deferred tax assets:
ACCTUEA EXPEISES . - v vttt e et e ettt e e e $ 169 § 146
Net operating loss, alternative minimum tax, research and development, and
foreign tax credit carry forwards.......... ... ... oL 14.5 13.2
Pension liabilities . ... .... P P 5.7
Other . o e 26 9
Gross deferred tax assetS. ... ..t e 340 344
Valuation allowance . . ........ .. i e e _ (15 (8.
Total deferred tax assets . ........... . i 26.5 26.3
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation and amortization ............ ... .t (49.6) (44.1)
Revenue recognition ..............oiuiiintt i (2.6) (3.7)
Pension liabilities .. ......... .0 i (3.9)
Undistributed earnings of non-US subsidiary ........................... _{56) _(50)
Gross deferred tax liabilities . .......... .. ... ... o _(61.3) _(52.8)
Net deferred tax liability....... ... i $(34.8) §(26.5)

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act was signed into law. One provision of the
legislation allows for repatriated foreign earnings, after meeting certain thresholds, to be taxed at 5.25%. The
company may elect to avail itself of this legislation, and is in the process of evaluating the effects of this
repatriation provision. The company expects to complete its evaluation within a reasonable period of time once
clarifying language has been issued by Congress and the Internal Revenue Service. The range of possible
dividend amounts that may qualify under this legislation is between zero and $104.0 million. The related range
of potential income tax provision required is between zero and $6.0 million.
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Federal and state income taxes have not been provided on accumulated undistributed earnings of certain
foreign subsidiaries aggregating approximately $88 million at December 31, 2004, as such earnings have been

reinvested in the business. The determination of the amount of the unrecognized deferred tax liability related
to the undistributed earnings is not practicable.

The company incurred a domestic tax loss in 2004 estimated at $6.0 million which may be carried
forward for 20 years expiring in 2024.

The company has the following estimated credit carry forwards and expiration dates:

Credit Carryforward Amount Expiration
Research & development.......... .. ... i, $3.9 2022 - 2024
Alternative minimum tax. ... 1.6 None
Foreign tax credit . ...... ... ... .. i i L3 2013
Total. . oo e e $6.8

The tax effect of foreign net operating losses in deferred tax assets expire as follows:

Country Amount Expiration
Canada. . ... e $3.7 Over 90% in 2014
All other ... e 3.0 None

Total. L e $6:7

The company has a net valuation allowance of $6.5 million for the above net operating losses and foreign
tax credits.

The company also has state net operating loss carryforwards of $25.0 million, a majority of which expires
in 2016. The approximate value of these carryforwards is $1.1 million for which a valuation allowance of
$1.0 million is recorded.

The net deferred tax liability at December 31 is classified in the balance sheet as follows:

2004 2003
Current net deferred tax @sSets. . ....ovvvr et $203 $129
Long-term net deferred tax liability............ ... ... . i i, (55.1) (394)

$(34.8) $(26.5)

The company paid income taxes of $6.3 million in 2004, $9.7 million in 2003 and $8.7 million in 2002.

Income from continuing operations before taxes for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004
consisted of the following:

2004 2003 2002
United States. ............ ... i $(31.8) $23.4  $40.7
Non-US ..o 6.5 18.6 16.2

$(253) $42.0 $56.9
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NOTE G — POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS

The company and its subsidiaries sponsor a number of defined benefit retirement plans in the US
covering certain of its salaried and hourly employees. Benefits under these plans are primarily based on final
average compensation and years of service as defined within the provisions of the individual plans. The
company also participates in several retirement plans that provide defined benefits to employees under certain
collective bargaining agreements.

Through 2002, a wholly-owned subsidiary sponsored a defined benefit plan for substantially all of its
employees in the United Kingdom (non-US benefit plan). Benefits under this plan were based on final
compensation and years of service as defined within the provisions of the plan. Effective December 31, 2002,
the company curtailed the plan to reduce its cost structure. The curtailment froze each employee’s benefits, to
be adjusted for infiation.

The company uses December 31 and September 30 measurement dates for its US and non-US benefit
plans, respectively.

The components of net periodic pension expense for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004 are

summarized as follows:
US Benefit Plans Non-US Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

Company-sponsored plans

Service cost.......ooiiiiii i $46 $41 $33 § 2 $2. 8% 5
Interestcost ............ ... L. 7.7 7.1 5.4 2.6 2.2 2.1
Expected return on plan assets............ (82) (7.8 (7.1 (32) @7 (27
Amortization of transition amount......... (.2) (.2) (.2)
Other........... ... .. .. ... ... ... 1.6 .9 A 9 &8 3
5.5 4.1 1.5 5 .5 2
Multiemployer plans .............coivnn.n. 2 2 4 o
Net periodic pension eXpense . .............. $57 $43 $19 $ 5 $.5 § 2

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used in determining pension costs for
the three-year period ended December 31, 2004:

US Benefit Plans Non-US Benefit Plan
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002
Discount rate . .........vivriirniii e 6.25% 6.75% 7.30% 5.50% 5.50% 6.25%
Rate of increase in compensation levels ........... 3.50% 3.50% 3.50% NA* 2.50% 2.50%
Expected long term rate of return on plan assets.... 9.00% 9.00% 9.50% 8.30% 8.00% 8.00%

* Non-US plan benefits are no longer adjusted for compensation level changes
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The following summarizes the changes in the projected benefit obligation and plan assets, the funded
status of the company-sponsored plans and the major assumptions used to determine these amounts at
December 31: ‘

Non-US Benefit

US Benefit Plans Plan
2004 2003 2004 2003

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year ........... $1209 $106.0 $46.3  $40.9
Service COSt. . ..ot 4.6 4.1 2 2
Interest COSt ... ..ottt e 7.7 7.1 2.6 2.2
Actuarial loss (gain) ........coiviiii i 44 6.9 (.3 24
Benefits paid . .. ... ... (3.4) (3.2)  (2.1) (1.9
Increase due to translation ........... ... ... ... . ... 3.8 2.5
Projected benefit obligation at end of year ................ $134.2  $1209 $49.3  $46.3
Accumulated benefit obligation at end of year............. $117.6 31056 $49.3 $46.3
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year.............. $ 886 § 741 $38.2 $34.1
Actual return on plan assets .. ........ . o i 8.6 13.9 3.6 3.6
Company contribution . ......... ... .. ... i i 8.8 38 .8 4
Benefits and expenses paid . .......... ... s (3.4) (32) (23) (@21
Increase due to translation ............................. 3.2 2.1
Fair value of plan assets at end of year................... $1026 § 88.6 $43.5 $38.1
Funded status of plan atend of year..................... $(31.6) $(32.3) $(5.8) $(8.2)
Unrecognized actuarial loss ............................ 39.2 36.2 13.5 14.8
Unrecognized prior Service Cost ...........c.ovevverennn.. 1.7 1.9
Unrecognized net transition obligation .............. e (.1) 1
Net amount recognized as prepaid benefit cost in the balance

SNt . $ 92 § 59 $77 $66
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist of:

Prepaid benefitcost .......... ... ... i, $ 92 $143 $77 $6.6

Accrued benefit liability ............................. (24.2)  (32.8)

Intangible asset. . ...ttt 1.7 1.9

Accumulated other comprehensive income, pre-tax....... 22.5 22.5

Net amount recognized . .. ..., $§ 92 § 59 8§77 $ 66

The following table summarizes the weighted-average assumptions used in determining benefit obliga-
tions as of December 31, 2004 and 2003:

UsS Non-US
Benefit Plans Benefit Plan

2004 2003 2004 2003

Discount rate .........coiiriiiiiiii i e 6.00% 6.25% 5.75% 5.50%

Rate of increase in compensation levels ........................ 3.50% 3.50%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets................. 9.00% 9.00% 8.30% 8.00%
38
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The following table summarizes the company’s asset allocations for its benefits plans as of December 31,
2004 and 2003 and the target allocation for 2005 by asset category:

US Benefit Plans Non-US Benefit Plan
Percentage of Percentage of
Plan Assets Plan Assets
as of Target as of Target
December 31, Allocation  September 30,  Allocation
, 2004 2008 2005 2004 2003 2005
Equity securities ..............ccoviiiin.. 77% 80% 75% 57% 36% 60%
Fixed income securities. ................... 23% 20% 25% 42%  54% 40%
Cash ... oo o . 1% 10%
TOtal ..o 100% 100%  100%  100% 100%  100%

The investment strategy for the US benefit plans is to 1) maintain a liquid, diversified portfolio that can
provide a weighted-average target return of 9% or more, 2) maintain liquidity to meet obligations and
3) prudently manage administrative and 'management costs. The plan invests in equity and fixed income
instruments. The equity allocation has an upper limit of 80% of plan assets with US equities comprising 50%
to 80% while company stock may comprise up to 10%. The fixed income allocation has an upper limit 40% of
plan assets with US high grade fixed income securities comprising 15% to 40%; US high yield fixed income
investments may comprise up to 15% of plan assets. The use of derivatives is allowed in limited circumstances.
The plan held no derivatives during the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, equity .securities included .3 million and .5 million shares of the
company’s common stock valued at $6.0 million and $8.8 million, respectively. Dividends paid on the
company’s common stock to the pension trusts aggregated $.2 million and $.4 million for each of the years
ended December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Plan assets for the non-US benefit plans consist principally of a diversified portfolio of equity securities,
U.K. government obligations and fixed interest securities.

The company expects to contribute $5.0 million or more to the US benefit plans in 2005. Contributions to
the plans will be based on such factors as annual service cost as well as impacts to plan asset values, interest
rate movements and benefit payments.

The following table presents the benefits expected to be paid under the company’s defined benefit plans in
each of the next five years, and in aggregate for the five years thereafter:

us Non-US
Benefit Plans Benefit Plan
2005 . e e e . $ 36 $23
2006 . . e e 3.9 2.4
2007 e e e e e e e 4.2 2.5
2008 . e e e 4.7 2.7
2009 . e e e 5.2 2.8
2000-2008 .. e 373 17.1
$58.9 $29.8

The company also sponsors a number of defined contribution pension plans covering a majority of its
employees. Participation in the plans is at each employee’s election. Company contributions to these plans are
based on a percentage of employee contributions. The cost of these plans, including the plans of companies
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acquired during the three-year period ended December 31, 2004, was $6.0 million in 2004, $5.2 million in
2003 and $5.4 million in 2002.

Prior to September 30, 2003, the company also provided medical benefits to certain eligible retired
employees. These benefits were funded when the claims were incurred. Participants generally became eligible
for these benefits at age 60 after completing at least fifteen years of service. The plan provided for the payment
of specified percentages of medical expenses reduced by any deductible and payments made by other primary
group coverage and government programs. Effective September 30, 2003, the company amended the retiree
medical plan that effectively canceled coverage for all eligible active employees except for retirees and a
limited group that qualified under a formula based on age and years of service. Accumulated postretirement
benefit liabilities of $4.3 million and $4.8 million at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively, were fully
accrued. The net periodic postretirement benefit costs have not been significant during the three-year period
ended December 31, 2004.

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the
“Act”) became law. The Act introduced a prescription drug benefit under Medicare and a federal subsidy to
sponsors of certain retiree health care benefit plans. The Act did not have a material impact on the company’s
accumulated postretirement obligations, results of operations or cash flows.

NOTE H — DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

All derivative financial instruments are reported on the balance sheet at their respective fair values.
Changes in fair value are recognized either in earnings or equity, depending on the nature of the underlying
exposure being hedged and how effective a derivative is at offsetting price movements in the underlying
exposure. All of the company’s derivative positions existing at December 31, 2004 qualified for hedge
accounting under SFAS No. 133. Derivatives documentation policies comply with the standard’s
requirements,

To manage interest costs, the company utilizes interest rate swaps in combination with its funded debt.
On balance, interest rate swaps executed in conjunction with long-term private placements effectively
converted fixed rate debt to variable rate debt. At December 31, 2004, the company’s receive fixed, pay
variable swap agreements with financial institutions terminate in varying amounts between 2005 to 2012.
These agreements are designated as fair value hedges.

At December 31, 2004, the company was also party to interest rate swap agreements with financial
institutions in which the company pays interest at a fixed rate and receives interest at variable LIBOR rates.
These derivative instruments terminate in varying amounts between 2005 to 2010. These interest rate swap
agreements are designated as cash flow hedges.

The fair values of interest rate swaps are based on quotes from financial institutions. The following table
summarizes the company’s interest rate swaps at December 31, 2004 and 2003:
Fair Value Swaps Cash Flow Swaps

2004 2003 2004 2003
Notional amount ..........c.oouuurieeiiinneneneennnn, $220.0 $285.0 $85.0 $115.0
Fairvalue ....... ... (6.7) (7.9) .8 (1.5)
Average pay rate ....... S 5.5% 39%  4.4% 4.3%
Average receive rate . ...ttt e 6.0% 6.0% 2.5% 1.2%

The comipany cancelled various interest rate swaps associated with its debt portfolio in response to
movements in the interest rate market. These transactions resulted in a cash payment of $.5 million in 2004
and cash receipts of $7.2 million in 2003 and $4.6 million in 2002. The associated gains were deferred and are
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being amortized as a reduction to interest expense over the life of the underlying debt. The unamortized
balance of these gains at December 31, 2004 and 2003 was $9.8 million and $13.0 million, respectively.

The company designates foreign currency forward exchange contracts as fair value hedges to protect
against the variability in exchange rates on short-term intercompany borrowings and firm commitments
denominated in foreign currencies. These derivative instruments mature in 2005,

The company also manages the volatility of cash flows caused by fluctuations in currency rates by
entering into foreign exchange forward contracts and options. These derivative instruments hedge portions of
the company’s anticipated third-party purchases and forecasted intercompany sales denominated in foreign
currencies and mature from 2005 to 2006.

The following table summarizes the company’s foreign exchange contracts at December 31, 2004 and
2003:

2004 2003
Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Fair value forwards ................... ... .. ... $ 9.9 $(1) %220 $3
Cash flow forwards. . ........ ... ... . i 24.9 2.6 374 2.2
OPpLioNS ...t 25.1 4 _
Total ..o $59.9 $2.9 $59.4 $2.5

The company expects $1.6 million of net gains that are reported in accumulated other comprehensive
income as of December 31, 2004 to be reclassified into earnings in 2005 as the respective hedged transactions
will affect 2005 earnings.

NOTE I — STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

The company’s stock benefit plans, approved by the company’s shareholders, authorize the grant of
benefit shares or units to key employees and directors. The plan approved in 1988 authorized, until May 1998,
the grant of up to 2.7 million benefit shares or units (as adjusted for subsequent stock splits and dividends).

The plan approved in 1996 and amended in 1999 and 2003 authorized the grant of up to 4.0 million
benefit shares or units until April 2006. These share or unit amounts exclude amounts that were issued under
predecessor plans. Benefit shares or units include incentive and non-incentive stock options, stock awards and
other stock units. The plan approved in December 2001 authorized the grant of up to 1.0 million benefit shares
until December 2011. No grants were made under this plan and the plan was canceled in July 2002.

Stock options are primarily granted at the fair market value of the shares on the date of grant and
normally become exercisable one year after grant at a rate of one-half annually and are exercisable in full on
the second anniversary date. All options and rights must be exercised within ten years from date of grant. At
the company’s discretion, vested stock option holders are permitted to elect an alternative settlement method
in lieu of purchasing common stock at the option price. The alternative settlement method permits the
employee to receive, without payment to the company, cash, shares of common stock or a combination thereof
equal to the excess of market value of common stock over the option purchase price. The company intends to
settle all such options in common stock.
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Stock option activity for the three-year period ended December 31, 2004 was as follows:

Weighted Average
Option Shares Price per Share ($)
2004 2003 2002 2004 2003 2002

(in millions)

Outstanding at beginning of year ............... 24 22 23 2006 2133 20.86
Granted . ....... ... e 5 5 2 1874 1537 2284
Cancelled orexpired ......................... 2) (3 (1) 2014 2092 2187
Exercised ......... ... oot ()  (2) 1565 18.84 18.09
Outstanding at end of year .. .................. 26 24 22 1984 2006 21.33
Exercisable at end of year..................... 18 1.5 1.5 2070 21.25 21.28

The following table summarizes information concerning stock options outstanding as of December 31,
2004 under all plans:

Options Remaining Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Weighted Average Average
Average Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Remaining Life Price Shares Price

(in miltions) (in years) (in millions)

$14.01-$16.00............. 3 8.4 $14.98 1 $14.45
16.01- 18.00............. 4 6.9 16.30 2 16.16
1801- 2000............. 5 9.0 18.83 2 18.92
2001 - 2200............. i 4.7 21.08 i 21.04
22.01- 2400............. S 4.4 23.44 4 23.53
2401 - 2600............. 2 2.2 24.93 2 24.80
2.6 6.1 $19.84 1.8 $20.70

Stock award shares are granted to employees at no cost. Awards primarily vest at the rate of 25% annually
commencing one year from the date of award, provided the recipient is still employed by the company on the
vesting date. The cost of stock awards, based on the fair market value at the date of grant, is being charged to
expense over the four-year vesting period. The following table summarizes stock award grants for the three-
year period ended December 31, 2004:

2004 2003 2002
Number of shares granted (in millions) ........................ 2 .0 .1
Fair value of shares granted. . ................................. $ 32 $ 8 §$ 25
Weighted average fair value pershare .......................... $19.19  $15.81  $22.73
Compensation expense recorded . ............ .. ..o, $ 10 $ 12 $ 15

Under the 1988 plan, no benefit shares or units were available for future grant during the three-year
period ending December 31, 2004. Under the 1996 plan, as amended, the following benefit shares or units
were available for future grant: .8 million at December 31, 2004, 1.2 million at December 31, 2003 and
.1 million at December 31, 2002.

42




FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

NOTE J — SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

The company’s board of directors has the authority to issue 90.0 million shares of common stock at a par
value of $1 per share. The holders of common stock (i) may receive dividends subject to all of the rights of the
holders of preference stock, (ii) shall be entitled to share ratably upon any liquidation of the company in the
assets of the company, if any, remaining after payment in full to the holders of preference stock and
(iii) receive one vote for each common share held and shall vote together share for share with the holders of
voting shares of preference stock as one class for the election of directors and for all other purposes. The
company has 48.6 million and 48.4 million common shares issued as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Of those amounts 48.2 million and 47.9 million common shares were outstanding as of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

The company’s board of directors is also authorized to provide for the issuance of .8 million shares of
preference stock at a par value of $1 per share. The authority of the board of directors includes, but is not
limited to, the determination of the dividend rate, voting rights, conversion and redemption features and
liquidation preferences. The company has not issued any preference stock as of December 31, 2004.

In July 1998, the company declared a dividend distribution of one preferred share purchase right on each
share of common stock outstanding on and after August 18, 1998. The rights are not exercisable until the
rights distribution date, defined as the earlier of: 1) the tenth day following a public announcement that a
person or group of affiliated or associated persons acquired or obtained the right to acquire beneficial
ownership of 20% or more of the outstanding common stock or 2) the tenth day following the commencement
or announcement of an intention to make a tender offer or exchange offer, the consummation of which would
result in the beneficial ownership by a person or group of 30% or more of such outstanding common shares.
Each right, when exercisable, entitles the holder to purchase from the company one one-hundredth of a share
of Series A Preferred stock of the company at a price of $100 per one one-hundredth of a preferred share,
subject to adjustment. The company is entitled to redeem the rights at $.10 per right, payable in cash or
common shares, at any time prior to the expiration of twenty days following the public announcement that a
20% position has been acquired. In the event that the company is acquired in a merger or other business
combination transaction or 50% or more of its consolidated assets or earning power is sold, proper provision
will be made so that each holder of a right will thereafter have the right to receive, upon the exercise thereof at
the then current exercise price of a right, that number of shares of common stock of the acquiring company
which at the time of such transaction would have a market value of two times the exercise price of the right.
The rights expire on. August 18, 2008 unless earlier redeemed by the company. Until exercised, the holder of a
right, as such, will have no rights as a shareholder, including, without limitation, the right to vote or to receive
dividends.

NOTE K — ACQUISITIONS

In September 2002, the company acquired Leach Company (“Leach”), a leading manufacturer of rear
load refuse collection bodies located in Oshkosh, Wisconsin. Leach, whose market strength is primarily in
government and municipal markets, utilizes a dealer channel similar to other Environmental Products Group
operations. In October 2002, the company also acquired Wittke, Inc. (“Wittke”), a manufacturer of dynamic
truck-mounted refuse collection equipment located in Medicine Hat, Alberta, Canada and Kelowna, British
Columbia, Canada. Wittke brand products included front load, side load and automated side load refuse truck
bodies. Wittke sold direct to customers at the time of the acquisition, and particularly to private contractors
and large waste hauling company market segments. The company acquired Leach and Wittke using a
combination of cash and stock totaling $101.3 million. As a result of these 2002 acquisitions, the company
recorded $11.5 million of working capital, $19.6 million of fixed and other long-term assets, $5.6 million of
intangible assets, $2.3 million of restructuring costs incurred in connection with the shut down of an acquired,
non-strategic components facility, $8.1 million of long-term liabilities and $75.0 million of goodwill. The

43



FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Continued)

company also assumed $9.8 million in debt. An insignificant portion of the related goodwill is expected to be
deductible for tax purposes. In 2003, the company finalized the property, equipment and intangible appraisals
and warranty campaigns resulting in an increase to goodwill of $10.0 million. During 2004, the company
utilized the restructuring reserve in its disposition of the non-strategic components facility.

The Leach .and Wittke acquisitions have been accounted for as purchases. Accordingly, the results of
operations of the acquired companies have been included in the consolidated statements of income from the
effective dates of the acquisitions. Assuming the Leach and Wittke acquisitions occurred January 1, 2002, the
company estimates the following pro forma amounts for the year ended December 31, 2002:

2002
Nt SALES « o v e et et e e $1,119.8
Income from continuing Operations ... ........c..c.voeeitiriininreniiinnennans 294
Netincome. ..o, P 24.2
Basic income per share
Income from continuing operations ........... ... . i i i $ .64
Nt ITCOMIE . L oottt e e e e 53
Diluted income per share
Income from continuing operations ... .......... ... $ 64
NELINCOME . . oottt e e e e e 52

NOTE L — DISCOUNTINUED OPERATIONS

The following table presents the operating results of the company’s discontinued operations for the three-
year period ended December 31, 2004:

. 2004 2003 2002
Nt SAlES .ottt e $53.9 $69.0 $98.8

L7 ] O 48.0 65.0 94.7
Income before income taxes ...........coviiiiiiiniriieeennnann, 59 4.0 4.1
Income tax eXPense .. ... ... e 2.2 1.4 1.4
Income from discontinued operations. . ......... ... ... .. .o, “$37 $26 §$27

In conjunction with the strategic restructuring initiatives announced in June 2004 (see Note M), the
company determined that its investments in Justrite Manufacturing, L.L.C. (“Justrite””), Technical Tooling,
Inc. (“TTI”) and Plastisol B.V. Holdings (“Plastisol”) were no longer strategic investments and divested its
interests.

In December 2004, the company sold Justrite for $40.1 million in cash resulting in an $11.1 million gain
on disposal of discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. Justrite manufactured
hazardous liquid containment products including safety cans and cabinets for flammables and corrosives,
specialty containers and drum safety equipment. Revenues amounted to $39.7 million, $35.9 million and
$32.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Income before income
taxes totaled $5.0 million, $3.5 million and $3.9 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively. Sale proceeds were used to repay debt.

In October 2004, the company divested TTI for $6.5 million in cash resulting in a $1.4 million gain on
disposal of discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. TTI manufactured a full line of can
body-making precision tooling for beverage can producers worldwide. Revenues were $6.5 million, $6.6 mil-
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lion and $5.6 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operating income
before income taxes totaled $1.1 million, $1.0 million and $.7 million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively. Sale proceeds were used to repay debt.

In July 2004, the company sold its 54% majority ownership interest in Plastisol to the minority partner for
$2.5 million in cash and a $.4 million note receivable resulting in a $5.2 million loss on disposal of discontinued
operations for the year ended December 31, 2004. The company acquired its ownership interest in 2001.
Plastisol manufactured glass fiber reinforced polyester fire truck cabs and bodies mainly for European and
Asian markets. Revenues totaled $7.7 million, $13.6 million and $17.1 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Operating losses before income taxes totaled $.1 million,
$.7 million and $.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Sale proceeds
were used to repay debt.

In April 2003, the company completed the sale of the Sign Group to a third party for cash of $7.5 million
and a $4.0 million note receivable resulting in a $.4 million loss on disposal of discontinued operations for the
year ended December 31, 2003. The company incurred an additional $.6 million loss on disposal of
discontinued operations for the year ended December 31, 2004, reflecting the resolution of a contingent
liability. The Sign Group manufactured illuminated, nonilluminated and electronic advertising sign displays
primarily for commercial and industrial markets and contracted to provide maintenance services for the signs
it manufactured as well as signs manufactured by others. Revenues for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2002 were $12.8 million and $43.2 million, respectively. The Sign Group’s operations before income taxes
were break even for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002. The company retained certain assets and
liabilities in conjunction with the sale. Sale proceeds were used to repay debt. .

As of December 31, 2003, net assets of the company’s discontinued operaﬁons consisted of $17.8 million
of current assets, $6.9 million of properties and equipment, $17.4 million of goodwill, $13.1 million of current
liabilities and $6.0 million of long-term liabilities.

NOTE M — RESTRUCTURING CHARGES AND ASSET DISPOSITIONS

Restructuring charges

In 2004, the company announced the implementation of a number of initiatives including restructuring of
certain of its operations and the dispositions of certain assets. The 2004 restructuring initiatives focused on
plant consolidations and product rationalization in order to streamline the company’s operations; the actions
taken are aimed at improving the profitability of the fire rescue, refuse truck body and European tooling
businesses as well as improving the company’s overhead cost structure. The asset dispositions consisted of
asset sales of certain operations the company considered no longer integral to the long-term strategy of its
business. In 2003, the company also effected two plant consolidations to reduce costs of the company’s
industrial warning and communications business and US tooling business.
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The following table summarizes the 2004 restructuring actions taken, the pre-tax charges to expense in
2004 and the total charges estimated to be incurred:

Pre-Tax Restructuring Estimate of
Group : Initiative Charges in 2004 Total Charges

Environmental Products Closure of the refuse truck
production facility in Oshkosh,
Wisconsin, and consolidation of
production into its facility in
Medicine Hat, Alberta;
completion expected in first
quarter of 2005 $ 8.4 $10.5

Fire Rescue Closure of the production facilities
located in Preble, New York and
consolidation of US production of
fire rescue vehicles into the Ocala,
Florida operations; completion
expected in first quarter of 2005 54 6.1

Tool , Reducing manufacturing activities
relating to tooling products in
France and outsourcing production
to its Portugal facility; completion
expected in the second quarter of
2005 L.

Corporate Planning and organizing
' restructuring activities

[\

1.3

"&
‘-b

o
W

15,

EEN
o5

18.

The cornpahy expects to incur the remaining $2.9 million of restructuring charges in 2005.

The following table summarizes the 2003 restructuring actions taken and the pre-tax charges to expense:

. Pre-Tax
Group Initiative Restructuring Charges
Environmental Products Ceasing production and sale of certain sweeper
products and components and reduction in
workforce $ .6
Safety Products Closure of a facility in the United Kingdom and
' reduction of its workforce at two other plants 33
Tool Ceasing the manufacture of tooling products in
New York facility and consolidation of
production into an Ohio facility .9
$4.8

These initiatives were announced and completed in 2003.
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The following presents an analysis of the restructuring reserves for the years ended December 31, 2003
and 2004:

Asset
Severance Impairment Other Total
Balance as of January 1,2003 ....................... $ — $ — $ — § —
Charges t0 eXPense . ... ..ottt 22 1.9 7 4.8
Cash payments ........................ P (2.2) (7)  (2.9)
Non-cash activity ................... e (1.9) (1.9)
Balance as of December 31, 2003...... e — — — —_
Charges to EXPEnse . . . ... vviet i 6.4 7.1 1.9 15.4
Cash payments ................. S (1.6) (. (33)
Non-cash activity ....... ... ... (7.1) (7.1)

Balance as of December 31,2004 .................... $ 438 $ — $ 2 $50

Severance charges in 2003 consist of costs to terminate employees and the ratable recognition of retention
bonuses for employees providing service until their termination date. Asset impairment charges consist of net
realizable value adjustments to manufacturing equipment located in the United Kingdom.

Severance charges in 2004 consist of termination and benefit costs for direct manufacturing employees
involuntarily terminated prior to December 31, 2004. The costs of retention bonuses for employees not severed
as of December 31, 2004 are recognized ratably over the future service period. Asset impairment charges
include $5.6 million of net realizable value adjustments on real property and manufacturing equipment and the
write-off of an intangible asset valued at $1.5 million relating to a tradename that will no longer be used after
the consolidation of the refuse businesses.

Asset dispositions

The company completed three asset dispositions during 2004. First, the company sold its 30% minority
share in Safety Storage, Inc. (“SSI”) to the majority shareholder in June 2004 for a nominal amount and, in
connection therewith, recorded a $2.9 million loss in the second quarter of 2004. Under the terms of the
transaction, the company was released from any future liability arising from a judgment awarded to a third
party creditor of SSI. The non-operating loss is included in other expense for the year ended December 31,
2004,

The company also divested a modest amount of operating assets located at a manufacturing facility in
Kelowna, British Columbia in July 2004. The net assets, primarily consisting of inventories and manufacturing
equipment and property, were sold by the company for approximately net book value.

Finally, the company sold approximately $9.6 million of lease financing assets to an independent party.
The financing assets represented amounts due from industrial customers of the company; the company had
earlier indicated that it would no longer extend financing 1o industrial customers. The company received cash
for the sale for an amount approximating its net book value at the time of sale. Proceeds from these sales were
used to pay down debt. '

NOTE N — LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The company is subject to various claims, other pending and possible legal actions for product liability
and other damages and other matters arising out of the conduct of the company’s business. The company
believes, based on current knowledge and after consultation with counsel, that the outcome of such claims and
actions will not have a material adverse effect on the company’s consolidated financial position or the results of
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operations. However, in the event of unexpected future developments, it is possible that the ultimate resolution
of such matters, if unfavorable, could have a material adverse effect on the company’s results of operations.

The company has been sued in Chicago by firefighters seeking damages claiming that exposure to the
company’s sirens has impaired their hearing and that the sirens are therefore defective. There are presently 33
cases filed during the period 1999-2004, involving a total of 2,467 plaintiffs pending in the Circuit Court of
Cook County, Hlinois, sixteen of which have been dismissed. The plaintiffs’ attorneys have threatened to bring
more suits if the company does not settle these cases. The company believes that these product liability suits
have no merit and that sirens are necessary in emergency situations and save lives. The discovery phase of the
litigation began in 2004; the company is aggressively defending the matters. The company successfully
defended approximately 41 similar cases in Philadelphia in 1999 after a series of unanimous jury verdicts in
favor of the company.

NOTE O — SEGMENT AND RELATED INFORMATION

The company has four continuing operating segments as defined under SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information”. Business units are organized under each segment
because they share certain characteristics, such as technology, marketing and product application, which
create long-term synergies. The principal activities of the company’s operating segments are as follows:

Environmental Products — Environmental Products manufactures a variety of self-propelled street
cleaning vehicles, vacuum loader vehicles, municipal catch basin/sewer cleaning vacuum trucks, refuse truck
bodies and water blasting equipment. Environmental Products sells primarily to municipal customers,
contractors and government customers.

Fire Rescue — Fire Rescue manufactures chassis; fire trucks, including Class A pumpers, mini-pumpers
and tankers; airport and other rescue vehicles, aerial access platforms and aerial ladder trucks. This group sells
primarily to municipal customers, volunteer fire departments and government customers.

Safety Products — Safety Products produces a variety of visual and audible warning and signal devices;
paging, local signaling, and building security, parking and access control systems and hazardous area lighting.
The group’s products are sold primarily to industrial, municipal and government customers.

Tool — Tool manufactures a variety of consumable tools which include die components for the metal
stamping industry, a large selection of precision metal products for nonstamping needs and a line of precision
cutting and grooving tools including polycrystalline diamond and cubic boron nitride products for superhard
applications. The group’s products are sold predominately to industrial customers.

Net sales by operating segment reflect sales of products and services and financial revenues to external
customers, as reported in the company’s consolidated statements of income. Intersegment sales are insignifi-
cant. The company evaluates performance based on operating income of the respective segment. Operating
income includes all revenues, costs and expenses directly related to the segment involved. In determining
operating segment income, neither corporate nor interest expenses are included. Operating segment deprecia-
tion expense, identifiable assets and capital expenditures relate to those assets that are utilized by the
respective operating segment. Corporate assets consist principally of cash and cash equivalents, notes and
other receivables and fixed assets. The accounting policies of each operating segment are the same as those
described in the summary of significant accounting policies.

See Note K for a discussion of the company’s acquisition activity during the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004,

Revenues attributed to customers located outside of the US aggregated $354.1 million in 2004,
$355.2 million in 2003 and $271.4 million in 2002. Sales exported from the US aggregated $108.8 million in
2004, $113.5 million in 2003 and $72.8 million in 2002.
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The company invests in research to support development of new products and the enhancement of
existing products and services. The company believes this investment is important to maintain and/or enhance
its leadership position in key markets. Expenditures for research and development by the company were
approximately $27.6 million in 2004, $32.5 million in 2003 and $25.6 million in 2002,

A summary of the company’s continuing operations by segment for the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004 is as follows:

2004 2003 2002
Net sales
Environmental Products ................coviiiiii... $ 3679 $ 3529 § 2964
Fire Rescue.......... ... . i i 360.9 402.2 317.1
Safety Products .......... ... 249.2 2424 237.4
T00l . e 161.0 153.2 150.7
Total net Sales . ..ottt $1,139.0 $1,150.7 $1,001.6
Operating income (loss) .
Environmental Products ..................... e $ (38 §$ 177 §$ 230
Fire Rescue........ ... i, (23.2) 14.8 11.4
Safety Products ........ .. ... .. . . 329 28.3 37.3
T00] ot e 15.3 14.9 18.0
COTporate EXPENSE .« .\ v v evt vt tn et (21.7) (14.0) {12.4)
Total operating income (loss) ............ ... ... (.5) 61.7 77.3
Interest EXPense . . ..ottt (20.8) (19.4) (19.8)
Other eXpense. . ...t i i i e (4.0) (.3) (.6)
Income (loss) before income taxes ........................ $ (253) § 420 $ 569
Depreciation and amortization
Environmental Products .............. .. ... .. ... . ..., $§ 64 § 68 § 45
Fire Rescue. ... ... .. . . . i, 5.1 4.5 3.9
Safety Products ....... ... i 5.0 5.0 5.5
T00l .o e e 7.9 73 7.2
COTPorate ... ...vvii it (2.0) (1.2) 1.1
Total depreciation and amortization ..................... $§ 224 § 224 § 222
Identifiable assets
Manufacturing activities
Environmental Products ............................. $ 2822 § 2854 § 2869
Fire Rescue.. ... ... ... . i, 232.7 2273 214.3
Safety Products ......... ... . . 2133 205.2 191.1
Tool .. e 167.2 163.2 165.7
Corporate . ...t e 34.0 36.8 34.2
Total manufacturing activities ...................... 929.4 917.9 892.2
Net assets of discontinued operations .................... 23.0 333
Financial services activities
Environmental Products ............................. 41.4 554 65.5
Fire Rescue. ... ... i, 155.1 174.7 161.2
Total financial services activities .................... 196.5 230.1 226.8
Total identifiable assets . ........... ... oo, $1,125.9 $1,171.0 $1,152.3
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2004 2003 2002
Additions to long-lived assets
Environmental Products .................... ... ... ..., $§ 54 § 234 § 1009
Fire Rescue. ... ...t i 5.5 5.7 4.8
Safety Products ......... ... oo 5.1 7.9 4.9
Tool .. e 5.9 5.5 11.4
COTPOTaALE .« o\ttt e 1.7 8.6 2.4
Total additions to long-lived assets ...................... $ 236 $ 511§ 1244

The following table presents financial revenues (included in net sales) by segment for the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004 as follows:
2004 2003 2002

Financial revenues

Environmental Products ... ....ooote e $36 $45 $65
Fire Rescue ............ ... .......... 2 8.6 8.9 9.6
Total financial TeVENUES . .. ..ot v et e $12.2  §$134 $l6.1

Due to thie nature of the company’s customers, a significant portion of the Environmental Products and
Fire Rescue financial revenues is exempt from federal income tax.

The segment information provided below is classified based on geographic location of the company’s
subsidiaries:

2004 2003 2002
Net sales
United States . ...t e $ 8865 $ 851.1 § 803.0
Burope . ... e 195.7 193.7 156.4
Canada .......... . e 44.3 96.4 34.1
Other . ... o e 12.5 9.5 8.1

$1,139.0 $1,150.7  $1,001.6

Long-lived assets

United States . ...ttt i, $ 3832 § 3920 $ 3886
Europe. ... .. o 52.4 49.8 43.0
Canada . ... ... . 72.5 87.2 78.7
Other. ... . i 1.3 1.2

$ 5088 § 5303 § 5115
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NOTE P — NET INCOME PER SHARE

The following table summarizes the information used in computing basic and diluted income per share
for the three-year period ending December 31, 2004:

2004 2003 2002

Numerator for both basic and diluted income per share

computations — net income (loss) ........... ... ..., $(2.3) $37.3  $38.2
Denominator for basic income per share — weighted average shares

outstanding. . ... L 48.1 48.0 45.8
Effect of employee stock options (potential dilutive common shares) . . . A
Denominator for diluted income per share — adjusted shares.......... 48.1 48.0 45.9

Diluted income per share is calculated by dividing net income by the weighted average common shares
outstanding plus additional common shares that would have been outstanding assuming the exercise of in-the-
money stock options. As of December 31, 2004, .1 million employee stock options were considered potential
dilutive common shares. These stock options, however, are antidilutive due to the net loss for the year ended
December 31, 2004, As a result, they are excluded from the denominator for the diluted income per share
calculation.

NOTE Q — COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND FAIR YALUES OF FINANCIAL
' INSTRUMENTS

The company leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases, some of which contain
options to renew. Total rental expense on all operating leases was $7.6 million in 2004, $8.7 million in 2003
and $8.5 million in 2002. Sublease income and contingent rentals relating to operating leases were
insignificant. At December 31, 2004, minimum future rental commitments under operating leases having
noncancelable lease terms in excess of one year aggregated $26.4 million payable as follows: $6.2 million in
2005, $4.8 million in 2006, $3.8 million in 2007, $2.8 million in 2008, $2.3 million in 2009 and $6.5 million
thereafter.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the company had outstanding standby letters of credit aggregating
$36.3 million and $35.5 million, respectively, principally to act as security for retention levels related to
casualty insurance policies and to guarantee the performance of subsidiaries that engage in export transactions
to foreign governments and municipalities.

The company issues product performance warranties to customers with the sale of its products. The
specific terms and conditions of these warranties vary depending upon the product sold and country in which
the company does business with warranty periods generally ranging from six months to five years. The
company estimates the costs that may be incurred under its basic limited warranty and records a liability in the
amount of such costs at the time the sale of the related product is recognized. Factors that affect the
company’s warranty liability include the number of units under warranty from time to time, historical and
anticipated rates of warranty claims and costs per claim. The company periodically assesses the adequacy of its
recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary.
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Changes in the company’s warranty liabilities for the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as
follows:

2004 2003
Balance at January 1 ... ...ttt e $ 127 $ 129
Provisions t0 eXpemse . . . .o\ttt e 16.4 16.3
Actual costsincurred . .. ... .. i e (18.0) (21.2)
Business acquisitions ... ...... ... 4.7
Balance at December 31 ... ... .ottt $ 1.1 $ 127

The 2003 business acquisitions reflect the revised estimate of warranty liabilities relating to the 2002
acquisitions of the refuse truck body businesses. Costs incurred in 2003 include one-time refuse truck body
warranty campaign charges.

The company guarantees the debt of a third-party dealer that sells the company’s vehicles. The notional
amounts of the guaranteed debt as of December 31, 2004 and 2003 totaled $.7 million and $.8 million,
respectively. No losses have been incurred as of December 31, 2004. The guarantees expire between 2005 and

2006.

The company also provides residual value guarantees on vehicles sold to certain customers. Proceeds
received in excess of the fair value of the guarantee are deferred and amortized into income ratably over the
life of the guarantee. These transactions have been recorded as operating leases and liabilities equal to the fair
value of the guarantees issued in 2004 were recognized. The notional amounts of the residual value guarantees
were $3.4 million and $3.5 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. No losses have been
incurred as of December 31, 2004. The guarantees expire between 2005 and 2010.

The following table summarizes the carrying amounts and fair values of the company’s financial
instruments at' December 31: '

2004 2003
Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Long-term debt (Note E) .......... ..., $358.6  $360.3 $380.6  $389.6
Fair value swaps (Note H) ......................... 220.0 (6.7) 2850 (7.9)
Cash flow swaps (Note H) .............. .. ... .... 85.0 .8 115.0 (1.5)
Foreign exchange contracts (Note H) ................ 34.8 2.5 -59.4 2.5

NOTE R — GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 141, “Business Combina-
tions”, and No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”, effective for fiscal years beginning after
December 15, 2001. Under the new rules, goodwill and other intangible assets deemed to have indefinite lives
are no longer amortized but are subject to annual impairment tests in accordance with these statements. Other
intangible assets continue to be amortized over their useful lives. The company adopted SFAS No. 142
effective January 1, 2002 and accordingly discontinued the amortization of goodwill.

As part of the adoption of SFAS No. 142, the company also completed a transitional goodwill
impairment test and determined that $8.0 million of goodwill related to a niche Tool Group business was
impaired. This amount was recognized in 2002 as a charge to net income resulting from a cumulative effect of
a change in accounting. The company determined the fair value of the reporting unit by calculating the present
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value of expected future cash flows. Changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended
December 31, 2004, by operating segment, were as follows:

Environmental Fire = Safety
: Products Rescue Products Tool Total
December 31,2002 ..................... $130.4 $33.5  $86.9  $81.8 $3326
Adjustments ....... ... .. 10.0 10.0
Translation ............ .. oo, 1.1 4.3 2.4 2 8.0
December 31,2003 ........ .. ... ... ..., 141.5 37.8 89.3 82.0 350.6
Adjustments ............ ... ... .. ... 9) 9
Translation ............. ... ... ... ..... 4 1.1 1.4 (.1) 2.8
December 31,2004 ..................... $141.0 $38.9 $90.7 $81.9  $352.5

The 2003 adjustments reflect the finalization of property, equipment and intangible appraisals and
warranty campaigns relating to the 2002 acquisitions of the refuse truck body businesses. The 2004
adjustments consist of the receipt of $.9 million from an escrow account established as part of the acquisitions
of the refuse truck body businesses.

Under SFAS No. 142, the company is required to test its goodwill annually for impairment; the company
performs this test at the beginning of the fourth quarter. The company performed this test in 2004 and
determined that there was no impairment.

The components of the company’s other intangible assets are as follows:

December 31, 2004 December 31, 2003
Weighted-
Average Gross Net Gross Net
Useful Life Carrying Accumulated Carrying Carrying Accumulated Carrying
(Years) Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Amortizable:
Developed software . ........ 6 $13.4 $(4.7) $ 87 8111 $(3.8) $ 73
Patents ................... 5-10 39 (24) 1.5 3.9 (2.1) 1.8
Customer relationships .. .. .. 20 1.9 (.2) 1.7 1.9 1 1.8
Distribution network ........ 40 1.3 (1) 1.2 1.3 1.3
Other .................... 3 4 A4
Non-amortizable tradenames. .. 1.0 1.0 2.5 2.5
Total ..o $21.9 $(7.4)  $145  $207 $(6.0)  $14.7

The company recorded a $1.5 million impairment charge in 2004 to write off a tradename that will no
longer be used after the consolidation of the refuse business in conjunction with the restructuring plan
announced in June 2004. Other intangible assets are included in the consolidated balance sheets within “other
deferred charges and assets”.

Amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2004 totaled $1.4 million. The company
estimates that the aggregate amortization expense will be $2.2 million in 2005, $2.0 million in 2006,
$1.6 million in 2007, $1.6 million in 2008, $1.2 million in 2009 and $4.9 million thereafter.

NOTE S — NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS
In December 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 132 (revised 2003), “Employers Disclosures about

Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits” to improve financial statement disclosures for defined benefit
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plans. SFAS No. 132 requires more detailed disclosures about plan assets, benefit obligations, cash flows,
benefit costs and other relevant information. The disclosures are generally effective for fiscal years ending after
December 31, 2003; a six-month delay in the effective date was provided for non-US plans. The company
adopted the additional disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 132 for its US plans as of December 31, 2003;
SFAS No. 132 was adopted as of December 31, 2004 for the company’s non-US plan.

In November 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 151, “Inventory Costs”’, which amends ARB 43,
Chapter 4, “Inventory Pricing”. SFAS No. 151 clarifies the treatment of abnormal amounts of idle facility
expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted materials to be treated as current-period charges. The provisions
of SFAS No. 151 are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. The company currently applies
overhead based upon actual rates excluding the influences of abnormal shutdown periods. Management will
further review the implications of SFAS No. 151 to determine what effect, if any, its adoption will have on the
company’s consolidated results of operations and statement of financial position.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, which revises
SFAS No. 123 and supersedes APB 25. SFAS No. 123(R) requires all share-based payments to employees,
including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial statements based on their fair
value. Using a “modified grant-date approach”, the fair value of an equity award is estimated on the grant date
and recognized over the requisite service period for all awards that vest. If the award does not vest, no
compensation cost is recognized. The FASB continues to believe that the fair value of a stock option awarded
to an employée generally must be estimated using an option pricing model. The provisions of SFAS
No. 123(R) are effective at the beginning of the first interim or annual period beginning after June 15, 2005.
Management believes the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) will have an impact on the company’s consolidated
results of operations and financial position but has not yet determined whether adoption will result in
incremental compensation expense materially different than the amounts disclosed in Note A totaling
$1.7 million, $.8 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 153, “Exchanges of Nonmonetary Assets” which is
effective for fiscal periods beginning after June 15, 2005 with earlier application permitted. The statement
eliminates the exception from fair value measurement for nonmonetary exchanges of similar productive assets
in APB 29 and replaces it with an exception for exchanges that do not have commercial substance. The
company has not completed its evaluation of SFAS No. 153 and has not yet determined whether the
statement will have an effect on the company’s consolidated results of operations or consolidated financial
position.

NOTE T — SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (UNAUDITED)

Effective January 1, 2004, the company began reporting its interim quarterly periods on a 13-week basis
ending on a Saturday with the fiscal year ending on December 31. In 2003, the company’s interim quarterly
periods ended on March 31, June 30, September 30 and December 31 year end. For convenience purposes, the
company uses “March 31, 2004, “June 30, 2004”, “September 30, 2004 and “December 31, 2004” to refer
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to its results of operations for the quarterly periods ended April 3, 2004, July 3, 2004, October 2, 2004 and
December 31, 2004, respectively.

For the Quarterly Period Ended

2004 2003
March 31 June 30  September 30 December 31  Mareh 31  June 30 September 30 December 31
Netsales .................. $260.4 $2%0.6 $268.9 $319.1 $278.9 $297.0 $273.9 $300.9
Gross margin . .............. 624 67.0 57.3 56.6 71.7 78.9 74.4 75.9
Income from continuing ‘
operations . .. ...l 1.0 (3.3) 3.7) 6.7) 6.4 9.1 9.2 104
Income from discontinued
operations . . .............. 1.2 1.0 1.1 4 .1 8 7 1.0
Gain (loss) on disposition . ... (4.4) (1.3) 12.4 (.4)
Net income ................ 2.2 6.7) (3.9) 6.1 6.5 9.5 9.9 11.4
Per share data — diluted: b
Income from continuing
operations. ............. .02 (.07) (.08) (.14) A3 19 19 .21
Income from discontinued
operations. . ............ .03 (.07) (.01) .27 .01 .01 .02 02
Net income* ............. .05 (.14) (.08) 13 .14 .20 21 24
Dividends paid per share . .. .. 10 .10 10 .10 20 20 20 20
Market price range per share
High .................... 20.03 20.56 19.14 19.18 2038 19.57 20.79 17.95

Low.. ...l 17.62 16.88 15.75 16.01 13.60 1427 | 1490 13.80

* amounts may not add due to rounding

The company incurred pre-tax restructuring charges (see Note M) as follows:

Period Ending: 2004 2003
March 31 e $1.6
June 30 . e $8.0 2.6
September 30 .. ..o 3.0 4

December 3L .o 4.4 2

The company recorded a $10.6 million charge in the fourth quarter of 2004 on a large multi-unit, multi-
year Netherlands fire rescue equipment contract, resulting from a reassessment of project costs and a
reassessment of expected recoveries under supplier contracts.
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and with the participation of its
management, including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the
design and operation of the Company’s “disclosure controls and procedures” (as defined in the Exchange Act
Rule 13a-15(e)) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Based upon that evaluation, the Chief
Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Company’s disclosure controls and
procedures are effective.

(b) Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and Attestation Report
of the Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining an adequate system of
internal control over financial reporting, as defined in the Exchange Act Rule i3a-15(f). Management
conducted an assessment of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on the framework
established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission in Internal
Control — Integrated Framework. Based on the assessment, management concluded that, as of December 31,
2004, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting is effective. Management’s assessment of the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, has been
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in
their report which is included herein.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no significant change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred
during the Company’s most recently completed fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.

PART 11

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Company.

The information under the caption “Proposal 1 — Election of Directors” and “Section 16(a) Beneficial
Ownership Reporting Compliance” contained in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2005 is incorporated herein by reference.

The following is a list of the Company’s executive officers, their ages, business experience and positions -
and offices as of March 1, 2005:

Paul Brown, age 41, was appointed Vice President-Internal Audit in April 2004. Previously,
Mr. Brown was Vice President Finance-Flame Retardants, for Great Lakes Chemical Corporation from
May 2000 to April 2004 and Finance Director, Process Additives Division from 1999-2000 for Great
Lakes Chemical Corporation.

Stephen C. Buck, age 56, was appointed president of the Safety Products Group in February 1998.
Mr. Buck was previously president of the Tool Group.
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Alexander D. Craig, age 50, was elected as Vice President and Chief Information Officer in April
2004. Previously, Mr. Craig was Vice President Business, Strategy and IT Development for Williams
International from April 2002 to April 2004, Principal of Craig Research LLC from May 2001 to April
2002, Executive Vice President and Chief Technology Officer for Gale Group of Thomson Corporation
from April 2000 to May 2001 and Vice President, New Business Development of Allied Tool Corporation
from March 1996 to April 2000.

John A. Del eonardis, age S8, was elected Vice President-Taxes in January 1992.

Kimberly Dickens, age 43, was elected as Vice President Human Resources in April 2004,
Previously, Ms. Dickens was appointed Vice President Human Resources for BorgWarmer, Inc. from
2002 to March 2004, and Vice President Human Resources for BorgWarner Transmission Systems from
1999 to 2002. :

Marc L. Gustafson, age 52, was appointed Group President, Fire Rescue Group effective October 7,
2004. Previously, Mr. Gustafson was President of American LaFrance in 2003, Board Member (non-paid
position) and laborer for Habitat for Humanity from 2001 to 2003 and President and CEO for Volvo
Trucks NA from 1996 to 2001.

Stephanie K. Kushner, age 49, was elected as Vice President and' Chief Financial Officer in
February 2002, Previously, Ms. Kushner was Vice President — Treasury and Corporate Development for
FMC Technologies in 2001 and Vice President and Treasurer for FMC Corporation from 1999-2001.

Karen N. Latham, age 45, was elected Vice President and Treasurer in December 2002.
Ms. Latham was a Consultant from 1998 to 2001 with Egon Zehnder International, Inc. and a Senior
Vice President from 2001 to 2002 with Coffou Partners, Inc.

Alan G. Ringler, age 54, was promoted to the position of Tool Group President in February 1998.
Richard L. Ritz, age 51, was elected Vice President and Controller in January 1991.

Jennifer L. Sherman, age 40, was appointed Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary effective
March 2004. Ms. Sherman was previously Deputy General Counsel and Assistant Secretary since 1998.

Mark D. Weber, age 47, was appointed President of the Environmental Products Group in April
2003. Mr. Weber was Vice President Sweeper Products for the Environmental Products Group from
2002-2003, General Manager of Elgin Sweeper Company from 2001-2002 and Vice President of
Operations at Elgin Sweeper from 1996-2001.

Robert D. Welding, age 56, was elected President and Chief Executive Officer as well as to the
Board of Directors in December 2003. Previously, Mr. Welding was Executive Vice President of
BorgWarner, Inc. from 1999 - 2003, President of BorgWarner, Inc.’s Driveline Group from 2002 - 2003,
President of BorgWarner Transmission Systems, Inc. from 1996 - 2003 and Vice President of
BorgWarner, Inc. from 1996 - 1999.

“These officers hold office until the next annual meeting of the Board of Directors following their election
and until their successors shall have been elected and qualified.

There are no family relationships among any of the foregoing executive officers.

’ [13

The information concerning the Company’s “independent audit committee financial experts”, as defined
by the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and Securities and Exchange Commission, contained under the caption “Board of
Directors and Committees” of the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholdcrs to be
held April 27, 2005 is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information contained under the caption “Executive Compensation” of the Company’s Proxy
Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held April 27, 2005 is incorporated herein by
reference.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters. ‘

The information contained under the captions “Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners” and
“Proposal 2 — Approval of the Federal Signal Corporation 2005 Executive Incentive Compensation Plan —
Equity Compensation Plan Information” of the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders to be held April 27, 2005 is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information contained under the caption “Certain Relationships and Related Transactions™ of the
Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held April 27, 2005 is incorporated
herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

The information under the caption “Proposal 4 — Ratification of Appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as
Independent Public Accountants for 2005 — Accounting Information” and “Board of Directors and Commit-
tees” in the Company’s Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on April 27, 2005
is incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Ttem 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules.

(a) 1. Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements of Federal Signal Corporation and Subsidiaries contained
under Item 8 of this Form 10-K are incorporated herein by reference:

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2004 and 2003
Consolidated Statements of Income (Loss) for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and
2002

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Statement Schedules

The following consolidated financial statement schedule of Federal Signal Corporation and Subsidiaries,
for the three years ended December 31, 2004 is filed as a part of this report in response to Item 15(a) (2):

Schedule IT — Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulations of the Securities
and Exchange Commission are not required under the related instructions or are inapplicable, and therefore,
have been omitted.

3. Exhibits
See Exhibit Index.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the
Company has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION

By: /s/ Robert D. Welding
Robert D. Welding
President, Chief Executive
Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

March 15, 2005

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below,
as of March 15, 2005, by the following persons on behalf of the Company and in the capacities indicated.
/s/ Robert D. Welding President, Chief Executive

Robert D. Welding Officer and Director
{Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ _Stephanie K. Kushner Vice President and Chief

Stephanie K. Kushner ~ Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)

/s/ Richard L. Ritz Vice President and Controller
Richard L. Ritz (Principal Accounting Officer)
/s/ James C. Janning Chairman and Director

James C. Janning

/s/ Charles R. Campbell Director
Charles R. Campbell

/s/ _Robert M. Gerrity Director
Robert M. Gerrity

/s/  Robert S, Hamada Director
Robert S. Hamada

Director

Paul W. Jones

/s{ Joan E. Ryan Director
Joan E. Ryan
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SCHEDULE II

FEDERAL SIGNAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

For the Years Ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002

. Deductions
Additions Accounts
Balance at Charged to Written off  Balance
Beginning Costs and Net of at End
Description of Year Expenses Recoveries of Year
($ in millions)
Deducted from asset accounts — Allowance for doubtful
accounts
Year ended December 31, 2004:
Manufacturing activities ..................c..ou. .. $2.5 $2.3
Financial service activities. .. .................... R 25 39
Total .. e $5.0 $3.3 $2.1) $6.2
Year ended December 31, 2003: .
Manufacturing activities ................. ... ... $2.5 $2.5
‘Financial service activities. ......................... _1.0 2.5
Total ... $3.5 $3.2 $(1.7) $5.0
Year ended December 31, 2002:
Manufacturing activities ............. ... i $2.3 $2.5
Financial service activities. .................. ... .... 1.0 1.0
Total ... $3.3 $2.2 $(2.0) 3.5
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EXHIBIT INDEX

The following exhibits, other than those incorporated by reference, have been included in the Company’s
Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Company shall furnish copies of these
exhibits upon written request to the Corporate Secretary at the address given on the cover page. (* denotes
exhibit filed in this Form 10-K)

3. a

10.

—.

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Company, filed as Exhibit (3)(a) to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1996 is incorporated herein by
reference. '

By-laws of the Company, as amended February 13, 2004, filed as Exhibit 3.b to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference.
Rights Agreement dated 7/9/98, filed as Exhibit (4) to the Company’s Form 8-A dated
July 28, 1998 is incorporated herein by reference.

The Company has no long-term debt agreements for which the related outstanding debt
exceeds 10% of consolidated total assets as of December 31, 2004. Copies of debt instruments
for which the related debt is less than 10% of consolidated total assets will be furnished to the
Commission upon request.

The 1996 Stock Benefit Plan, as amended April 17, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10(a) to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 is incorporated herein by
reference.

Federal Signal Corporation Management Incentive Plan is hereby filed as Exhibit (10) (b).*

Supplemental Pension Plan, filed as Exhibit (10) (¢) to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 1995 is incorporated herein by reference.

Executive Disability, Survivor and Retirement Plan, filed as Exhibit (10)(d) to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 is incorporated herein by
reference.

Supplemental Savings and Investment Plan, filed as Exhibit (10) (f) to the Company’s Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993 is incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Agreement with Robert D. Welding filed as Exhibit 10.f to the Company’s Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 is incorporated herein by reference.

Retirement and Settlement Agreement with Joseph J. Ross filed as Exhibit 10.g to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 is incorporated herein by
reference.

Pension Agreement with Stephanie K. Kushner, filed as Exhibit (10)(g) to the Company’s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 is incorporated herein by reference.

Employment Termination Agreement with Stephanie K. Kushner, filed as Exhibit (10) (h) to
the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 is incorporated herein by
reference.

Severance Policy for Executive Employees is hereby filed as Exhibit (10) (j).*

Change of Control Agreement with Stephanie K. Kushner, filed as Exhibit (10) (i) to the
Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001 is incorporated herein by
reference.

General Release and Separation Agreement, dated February 29, 2004, with Kim A.
Wehrenberg, filed as Exhibit 10 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
March 31, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference.

Form of Executive Change-In-Control Severance Agreement dated July 2004 between Federal
Signal Corporation and each of Robert D. Welding, Stephanie K. Kushner, Jennifer L.
Sherman, Alexander D. Craig, Kimberly L. Dickens, Mark D. Weber, Stephen C. Buck and
Alan G. Ringler, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended October 2, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference.
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Form of Executive Change-In-Control Severance Agreement dated July 2004 between Federal
Signal Corporation and Duane A. Doerle, Richard L. Ritz, Karen N. Latham, Paul Brown,
John A. Deleonardis and Matt J. Saviello, filed as Exhibit 10.2 to the Company’s Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended October 2, 2004 is incorporated herein by reference.

Director Deferred Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit (10) (h) to the Company’s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 1997 is incorporated herein by reference.

Broad Based Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit (99) to the Company’s Form S-8 dated
January 31, 2002 is incorporated herein by reference. This plan was terminated on July 18,
2002, and no shares were issued pursuant to this plan.

Computation of per share earnings is furnished in Note P of the financial statements contained
under Item 8§ of this 10-K and thereby incorporated herein by reference.

Annual Report to Shareholders for the year ended December 31, 2004. Such report is
furnished for the information of the Commission only and is not to be deemed “filed” as part of
this filing. ' ‘

Code of Ethics for CEO and Senior Financial Officers, as amended February 13, 2004, filed as
Exhibit 14 to the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 is incorporated
herein by reference.

Subsidiaries of the Company, as filed herein.*

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, as filed herein.*
CEO Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as filed herein.*
CFO Certification under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as filed herein.*

CEO Certification of Periodic Report under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as filed
herein.* : :

CFO Certification of Periodic Report under Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as filed
herein.*
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